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44™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty Fourth Annual Gah®eeting of the members of M&oromandel
Agro Products and Oils Limited will be held on Saturday 39August, 2020 at 10.30 A.M. at the Registered
Office of the Company at 12-B, Skylark Apartmemasheerbagh, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500029 tcatrans
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited iz Statements for the financial year ended 32@MX)
together with the reports of the Board of Directansl Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Maddi Vetdswara Rao (DIN- 00013393) who retires by rotatio
under Article 122 of the Articles of Association thle Company and being eligible, offers himself fier
appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Maddi Resh (DIN- 00013394) who retires by rotation undgicle
122 of the Articles of Association of the Compamgl deing eligible, offers himself for re-appointrhen

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Re-appointment of Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada (Din: 07140433), as an Independent Director of
company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass withwithout modification, the following Resolutias a Special
resolution : -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 anddf3Be Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) read with Schedule IV of the Act, the Compasi(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)
Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of Ale¢ [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof] and Regulation 17 and otppliGable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligat®
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015tjthg Regulations’), as amended from time to time,
Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada (Din: 07140433), who being eligible for re-appointment as an
Independent Director, has given her consent aloit) & declaration that she meets the criteria for
independence under Section 149(6) of the Act anguRéon 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and in
respect of whom, the Company has received a Notiegiting from a Member under Section 160(1) of th
Act proposing his candidature for the office of &itor, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Indeménd
Director & Woman Director of the Company, not lialib retire by rotation, to hold office for a sedon
term commencing from 19.03.2020 to 19.03.2025.”

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju (Dn: 07151102), as an Independent Director of
company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass withwithout modification, the following Resolutias a Special
resolution : -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 anddf38e Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) read with Schedule IV of the Act, the Compasi(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)
Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of Ale¢ [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof] and Regulation 17 and otppliGable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligat®
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015stjthg Regulations’), as amended from time to time,
Mr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju (Din: 07151102), who being eligible for re-appointment as an
Independent Director has given his consent alonth & declaration that he meets the criteria for
independence under Section 149(6) of the Act angulR&on 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and in
respect of whom the Company has received a Natiegiting from a Member under Section 160(1) of the
Act proposing his candidature for the office of &itor, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Indepénd
Director of the Company, not liable to retire byation, to hold office for a second term commendiagn
19.03.2020 to 19.03.2025."
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. 6. Ratification of Cost Auditors’ Remuneration

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with orheitit modification, the following resolution as and®ary
Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148(3) and other applicabdeipions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 [including any statutory modification(@) re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being ircéd
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2@kamended from time to time, the Company hereby
ratifies the remuneration of Rs.25,000/-per annenpdid with all applicable taxes and reimbursenoemt

of pocket expenses incurred in connection with dahdit, payable to M/s. Jithendra Kumar & Co, Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103347), Vijagala, who are appointed as Cost Auditors of the
Company to conduct Cost Audit of the Company ferfihancial year ending 31st March, 2021.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (includingy aCommittee
thereof) be and is hereby authorized to do all aot take all such steps as may be necessary,rpsope
expedient to give effect to this Resolution”

7. Maintenance of Register of Memebers and other &utory Registers at a Place other than the
Registered Office of the Company

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or witit modification(s), the following resolution asSaecial
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 94 and other applicable piamvisof the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder (including any stgtuhodification(s) or re-enactment thereof for thme
being in force), consent of the shareholders beismgreby accorded to keep and maintain the Regiét
Members, the Index of Members if any, other statutegisters and the copies of all annual retumd a
copies of certificates and documents required tarbmexed thereto at its office situated at facfmgmises,
Jandrapeta, Chirala, Andhra Pradesh — 523 165eififitict from 01-09-2020, instead of the registerfit®
of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any committee thereofref company be and
are hereby authorized to do all such things and &dlksuch actions as may be required from tinténe for
giving effect to the above resolution and mattetated thereto”.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Meadem Sekhar)
Place : CHILAKALURIPET Whole Time Director & CEO
Date : June 30, 2020. (DIN: 02051009
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NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeasirentitied to appoint a proxy to attend and \area
poll, instead of himself / herself and such proxged not be Member. The proxy form is enclosed which
should be deposited, at the Registered Offic@Qompany duly completed and signed, not less4Ban
hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy for not more than 5thivs and holding in the aggregate not more than te
percent of the total share capital of the Compamyying voting rights. A Member holding more thzm
percent of total share capital of the Company @agryoting rights may appoint a single person axypr
and such person shall not act as a proxy for amgrqterson or shareholder.

3. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorisgmtesentatives to attend the Meeting in terms of
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requesiagnd to the Company a certified copy of therBoa
Resolution authorizing such representative to dtterd vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

4. Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives areestqd to bring the attendance slips duly filledoin
attending the Meeting. Members who hold sharesmaterialised form are requested to write the@mntli
ID and DP ID numbers and those who hold shareshiysipal form are requested to write their Folio
Number in the attendance slip for attending the tiige

o

During the period beginning 24 hours before theetfired for the commencement of Meeting and ending
with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member wolitdentitled to inspect the proxies lodged at amgeti
during the business hours of the Company. All dozots referred to in the Notice and accompanying
explanatory statement are open for inspectioneaRigistered Office of the Company on all workiagsl

of the Company between 11:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.no. thyet date of the Annual General Meeting and at the
venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Megtin

6. Route-map to the venue of the Meeting is providgtie@end of the Notice (behind the Proxy form).

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer BookeefCompany will remain closed from Saturday
22 August, 2020 to Saturday 2@ugust, 2020 (both days inclusive).

8. The Financial Statements, the reports and all atheuments required under the law to be annexedtthe
will be available for inspection during working hsuat the Registered Office of the Company on any
working day prior to the date of the Annual Gendfakting.

9. Members desiring to seek any information on the Waimiccounts to be explained at the meeting are
requested to send their queries in writing to ten@any at the Registered Office of the Companyssio a
reach at least 7 days before the date of the ngettiprovide the required information.

10. Members who still hold share certificates in phgsform are advised to dematerialise their shadihgl
to avail the benefits of dematerialisation, whicttlude easy liquidity, since trading is permitted i
dematerialised form only, electronic transfer, sgsiin stamp duty and elimination of any possipitif
loss of documents and bad deliveries.

11. Members holding shares in physical form are reqekdd notify/send to the following Company’s
Registrar and Transfer Agent at: Bigshare ServRrégate Limited, 306, 3rd Floor, Right Wing, Amrath
Ville, Opp. Yashodha Hospital, Raj Bhavan Road, Sjgnda, Hyderabad — 500 082 at the earliest and
not later than 22l August, 2020.

-Particulars of their Bank Account, in case the sdrave not been sent earlier ; and
-Any change in their address/mandate/Bank details

12. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Atchumber (PAN) by every participant in
securities market. In view thereof, members whoehaet furnished PAN are requested to furnish to the
Registrar and Transfer Agents and also to Compagysiered office.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

Shareholders should note that as per statutoryigioms, if the dividend amount remains unpaid/
unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the due ddue said unpaid/unclaimed amount will be trarrsiér

to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) gptby Central Government. Shareholders who have
not received / claimed the said dividend are refgueto claim the same before due date. Members, who
have not en-cashed their dividend warrants, areestqd to write to the Registrars & Share Transfer
Agents.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102{fljhe Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Specia
Business to be transacted at the Annual Generalifdeis annexed herewith.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108tleé Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder and the regulation 44(1) of the SEBEt{bg Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Members are provided wighfaitility to cast their vote electronically, thghuthe
e-voting services provided by CDSL/NSDL, on themtementioned in this AGM Notice. The Company
has appointed Mr. K. Srinivasa Rao, Partner of MNKs.Srinivasa Rao & Co., Practicing Company
Secretaries (Membership No. FCS. 5599) as scretirfir conducting the e-voting process and voting
process in a fair and transparent manner. THaygeriod begins on  Wednesday"28ugust 2020 at
09:00 hrs. and will end on Friday, 2@&ugust, 2020 at 17:00 hrs. During this period shatders’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical forrmatematerialised form, as on the cut-off date2af"
August, 2020, may cast their vote electronicalljheTe-voting module shall be disabled for voting
thereafter. The instructions for shareholders gpgilectronically are given at page No.69 of the dain
Report.

The Results shall be declared on or after the AnBeaeral Meeting of the Company and shall be deeme
to be passed on the date of Annual General Me€fing.results along with the Scrutinizer's Reposdlsh
be placed on the website of the Company www.capuwlithin 48 hours of passing of the resolutionthat
Annual General Meeting of the Company and shalidramunicated to Bombay Stock Exchange.
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Information to Shareholders with respect to Items w0: 2,3, 4&5, under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI(LODR)

Regulations :

S. Information Mr. Maddi Mr. Maddi Mrs . . Mr. Shyama

No particulars Ramesh Venkateswara Rao Rallab_hand| Prasa(_j

Lakshmi Sarada Lakkaraju

1 Brief resume of the Mr. Maddi Ramesh Mr. Maddi Venkates{ Mrs. Rallabhandi Mr. Shyama
Directors & | aged about 52 wara Rao, aged aboutlakshmi Sarada Prasad Lakkaraj
Justification for| years residing at 64 years residing dtaged about 38 aged about 6%
appointment / ret Chilakaluripet and Guntur and having years residing at years residing a
appointment having good| rich  experience of Hyderabad and Guntur and

experience of more more than 37 years inhaving 13 years having rich
than 25 years in Exports of Tobacco| experience in experience of
Exports of| Cotton Seed Meal, corporate affairg more than 34
Tobacco, Cotton Linters etc.,, He did and Companies years in Finance|
Seed Meal, Linters Master degree in Act, Finance. She Direct and
etc., He s d Management anglis a qualified| Indirect Taxation
Commerce Business Admini{ Company and company
Graduation. stration (MBA). Secretary. Law matters. He
is a qualified
Chartered
Accountant.

2 Nature of  his| Having good| Having rich| Having 13 yearg Having 34 yearg
expertise in| experience of more experience of more experience in experience in
specific functionall than 25 years inthan 37 years in corporate affairg Finance, Direct
areas Exports of| Exports of Tobacco, and Companies and Indirect

Tobacco, Cotton) Cotton Seed Meal, Act, Finance,| Taxation and
Seed Meal, Linters Linters etc., Business company Law
etc., advisory, project matters and
consultancy project
services. consultancy
services.

3 Relationships betr Maddi Ramesh is Maddi Venkateswara No relationship No relationship
ween Directorg son of Mr. Maddi| Rao is son of Mr
inter-se Lakshmaiah  and Maddi Lakshmaiah

younger brother of and elder brother of
Maddi Maddi Ramesh, whg
Venkateswara Raq,are also Directors of
who are alsg the company.
Directors of the

company.

4 Names of listeg
entities in  which
the person also
holds the director; Ni Ni
ship and the Nil Nil
membership of
Committees of the
board

5 Shareholding  of 32,765 equity| 65,980 equity shares
non-executive shares (4.15%). (8.35%). Nil Nil
directors
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF TH E COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2ah8 Act’), the following Explanatory Statementtseut
all material facts relating to the business memtibonder Item Nos. 4 to 7 of the accompanyinj 4Annual
General Meeting Notice.

ITEM NO. 4 :

Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Saradais currently an Independent Director of the Conypand the Member of
the Audit Committee and Nomination and remunera@G@mmittee Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada has
completed her tenure as an independent and Worineot@ of the company for first five years anciwgible
for re-appointment for a second term on the Boattie® Company as an Independent Director.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of thearBoof Directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors tecommended re-appointment Mfs. Rallabhandi
Lakshmi Sarada as an Independent Director and Women Directorafeecond term of 5 (five) consecutive
years on the Board of the Company.

The Board, based on the performance evaluationd&gdendent Directors and as per the recommendaitidme
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considesd, thiven her experience and background and the
contribution made by her as an Independent Diremtor WWomen Director during her current term, opitiext

the continued association &frs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada would be beneficial to the Company and
therefore it is desirable to continue to avail Bervices as an Independent Director and Women Direc
Accordingly, subject to approval of shareholdersvigy of Special Resolution at ensuing Annual Gdnera
Meeting, it is proposed to re-appoir¥irs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada as an Independent Director and
Women Director of the Company not liable to rebserotation and to hold office for a second ternbdfive)
consecutive years on the Board of the Companytéfeetrom 19" March, 2020.

The Company has received a declaration fidns. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada that she meets with the
criteria of independence as prescribed both unateisection (6) of Section 149 of the Act and urRRegulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disture Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”). In terms of Regulation 25(8) of thisting RegulationsMrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada
confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstarrcgituation which exists or may be reasonablycagadted
that could impair or impact her ability to dischariger dutiesMrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada has also
confirmed that she is not debarred from holdingdffiee of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order any such
authority pursuant to circulars dated 20th Jund828sued by BSE Limited and the National Stockhaxge
of India Limited pertaining to enforcement of SEBfders regarding appointment of Directors by tistet
companies. Furthévirs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Saradais not disqualified from being appointed as a Etioe
in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has givenda@sent to act as an Independent Director.

In the opinion of the Boardyirs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada fulfils the conditions for her appointment as
an Independent Director and Women Director as §ipdcin the Act read with the rules made thereuratet
the Listing Regulationdyirs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Saradais independent of the management.

Brief resume and justification for reappointmenidaBxpertise in specific functional areas and natofe
expertise ofMrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada is given in the table as set out prior to thelBEratory
Statement:

The Board recommends this resolution for approt#he Members

ExceptMrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada none of the Directors / Key Managerial Persomfiche Company
/ their relatives are in any way, concerned orrggted, financially or otherwise, in the resolution

The Board commends the Special Resolution settdtéra no.4 of the notice for approval by Members.

ITEM NO.5:

Mr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju is currently an Independent Director of the Comypand the Chairman and
Member of the Audit Committee and Nomination andnuweeration CommitteeMr. Shyama Prasad
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Lakkaraju has completed his tenure as an independent Dire€tthe company for first five years and is
eligible for re-appointment for a second term omBoard of the Company as an Independent Director.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of thearBoof Directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors, teommended re-appointmentMf. Shyama Prasad
Lakkaraju as an Independent Director for a second term (ffvd) consecutive years on the Board of the
Company.

The Board, based on the performance evaluationd&dendent Directors and as per the recommendzaitidre
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, considee, tgiven his experience and background and the
contribution made by him as an Independent Directaring his current term, opined that the continued
association oMr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju would be beneficial to the Company and therefbigdesirable

to continue to avail his services as an IndepenDéaector. Accordingly, subject to approval of sélanlders by
way of special Resolution at ensuing Annual Gengiegting, it is proposed to re-appoMt. Shyama Prasad
Lakkaraju as an Independent Director of the Company notdiatb retire by rotation and to hold office for a
second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on tharBof the Company effective from*9varch, 2020.

The Company has received a declaration fmShyama Prasad Lakkaraju that he meets with the criteria
of independence as prescribed both under sub-sefdipof Section 149 of the Act and under Reguitatio
16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disture Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”). In terms of Regulation 25(8) of thisting RegulationsMr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju has
confirmed that he is not aware of any circumstamcsituation which exists or may be reasonablyciaied
that could impair or impact his ability to discharfis dutiesMr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju has also
confirmed that he is not debarred from holding dffece of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order onyasuch
authority pursuant to circulars dated 20th Jund828sued by BSE Limited and the National Stockhaxge
of India Limited pertaining to enforcement of SEBtders regarding appointment of Directors by tlstet
companies. Furthevlr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju is not disqualified from being appointed as a Btoe in
terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given bissent to act as an Independent Director.

In the opinion of the Boaradvir. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju fulfils the conditions for his appointment as an
Independent Director as specified in the Act redith the rules made thereunder and the Listing Ruils,
Mr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju is independent of the management.

Brief resume and justification for reappointmentaBxpertise in specific functional areas and natofe
expertise oMr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju is given in the table as set out prior to the Brptory Statement:

The Board recommends this resolution for approt#he Members

ExceptMr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju, none of the Directors / Key Managerial Persoraighe Company /
their relatives are in any way, concerned or irgier@, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board commends the Special Resolution settdtéra no.5 of the notice for approval by Members.

ITEM NO. 6:

In pursuance of Section 148 of the Companies A2t32and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Audjtor
Rules, 2014, the Company is required to appointoat Gwuditor to audit the cost records of the atile
products of the Company.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee afriéting held on June 29, 2020, the Board hasjdenes
and approved the appointment of M/s. Jithendra Ku&aCo., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.
103347), Vijayawada as the Cost Auditor for theficial year 2020-21 for a remuneration of Rs.2%;0per
annum with all applicable taxes and reimburseménubof pocket expenses.

M/s. Jithendra Kumar & Co., Cost Accountants hawe mecessary experience in the field of cost aadid,
have submitted a certificate regarding their ellgibfor appointment as Cost Auditors of the Compa

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148hef Act read with the Companies (Audit and Audijor
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Casditérs has to be ratified by the Members of thenBany.
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The Board commends the remuneration of Rs.25,@@¥/annum with all applicable taxes and reimbursgme
of out of pocket expenses to M/s. Jithendra Kuma&a& as the Cost Auditors and the approval of tleenlders
is sought for the same by an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution seabliem no.6 of the notice for approval by Mensher
ITEM NO: 7:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Ac132@the "Act") certain documents such as the Regisf

Members and Index of Members - separately for etads of equity & preference shares, registeriagex of
debenture holder, Register and Index of any otkeeufty holders, Register of Renewed and Dupli&itares /
Debentures / Securities Certificates, Registerwé@ Equity Shares, Register of ESOP, and cagfieall

annual returns prepared, together with the copieuificates and documents required to be anndixecktto
under Sections 92 of the Act, and other reldtedks, are required to be maintained at the texgid office of
the Company unless a special resolution is passadjeneral meeting authorizing the keeping ofr¢iggster at
any other place within the city, town or villagewhich the registered office is situated or anyeotplace in
India in which more than one-tenth of the total rhens entered in the Register of Members reside .

In the interest of operational and administrativenwenience, it is proposed to maintain the Regisfer
Members, Register of Debenture Holders, Index ofriders/ Debenture Holders and copies of annualngtur
and other Statutory Registers at the Company’ sefituated at Jandrapeta, Chirala, a place abzar its
registered office.

Approval of the Shareholders is required underiGe@4 of the Companies Act, 2013 for effecting thange
in the place at which the Register and Index of Mera etc are to be kept. The Board recommendsptwad
resolution set out under Item No.7 of the Notioe dpproval by the shareholders. None of the Danscand
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company andr thelatives are in any way concerned oteri@sted,
financially or otherwise in the Special Resolutgat out under Item No. 7 of the Notice .

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Meadem Sekhar)
Place : CHILAKALURIPET Whole Time Director & CEO
Date : June 30, 2020. (DIN: 02051004

10
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting th& Adnual Report of the Company together with the ited
Statement of Accounts for the year ended @arch, 2020.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE :

Summary of Financial performance of the CompanytierFinancial Year 2019-20 is depicted below:

STANDALONE (R.s)

' IND AS
Statement Of Profit & Loss Account 501920 5018-19 5017-18
Sales (No excise duty other than GST) 98,20,75/489  95,60,87,691 65,72,11,246
Other Income 16,87,028 18,45,90Y 16,34,644
Interest 1,06,71,787, 1,66,51,327 1,72,43,239
Profit Before Taxation 60,09,029 28,76,4b5 -6,00185
Profit After Taxation 38,14,886 82,78,369 -5,76585
Earnings Per Share of Rs.10/- 4,83 10.48 -73.01
Dividend Per Share of Rs.10/- NIL NIL NIL

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

Your Directors are happy to inform that overallfpemance of the company is better in spite of Iaelding
Cotton Seed (main raw material) and onslaught o¥/{DB19. Because of heavy rains in cotton growingaar
and delayed procurement, the company started ptioduitom 1st November 2019, which was delayed by 1
days, and recoveries from processed seed of 3896B4ML76 MT in the previous year), were low compaie
the last year. Only respite for the company wasitld get better average sale prices for all tlgypets except
for linters. The demand for linters did not pick-a Chinese market is still suffering with heawyession.

Because of high prices of Cotton Seed and low gjedddiscriminatory approach was adopted by thepeomy
in procurement calibrating sale prices and productiosts. This approach made the company to sedslall
processed products during the year itself, exéefgrk and leaving a little inventory for unseadananths. The
company achieved a turnover of Rs. 9820.75 lakleyaist Rs. 9560.88 lakhs in the previous yeag. gross
profit before taxes was Rs. 60.09 lakhs as ag&8s28.76 lakhs and due to adjustment of diffeaaditbilities
net profit for the period under review was Rs.38alkhs against Rs.82.78 lakhs during the last year.

Sell almost all processed products during the yself, the procurement of Cotton Seed during CO\ID
lockdown and later became herculean task becaudewofvolumes and unviable prices. This has led to
shutdown of the factory in May 2020 itself.

The power projects in Tamil Nadu and Gujarat dit dmwell due to changed wind patterns and gengtate
income of Rs. 73.56 lakhs compared to Rs. 82.95slakiring the previous year.

Future outlook: The company is planning to openenmocurement centers in Telangana, where produofio
cotton crop is likely to be more. It is also plamyito expand existing factory infrastructure to egp with the
additional requirement of storage of Cotton Seed @ther processed products and optimize the uiizeof
existing capacities of the plant.

The company is looking forward for alternative netekin view of border tensions with China. Howewewill
pursue the existing buyers for sales as they newd wolumes of linters.

Contrary to the expectations, during COVID-19 loakah time, demand for oil continue to be the sama an
customers are looking for more safe and packedtoilvoid health complications. The Governmentrafia
continues to permit import of oils due to heavyadlbdemand and its efforts of improving local oilede
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production is not adequate to supplement the iredodils. However your Directors are hopeful of éett
policies and encouragement to the local oil prodiia reducing the burden on exchequer.

Weather predictions are showing positive signsasfrral cotton crop in the ensuing season and altangena
State Government suggested the farmers for choasitign crop instead of other crops and these atidics
give hope for more production of cotton seed arttebetilization of capacities.

EXPORT AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS :

Your Directors wish to inform that the Company laported 702.900 M.T. of Cotton Linters woR97.88
lakhs during the year under review as against JWMT. worth¥ 132.45 lakhs in the previous year.

ANNUAL RETURN :

The details forming part of the extract of the AahReturn in form MGT-9 as required under Secti@ro®the
Companies Act, 2013 is included in this ReporAaeexure - | and forms an integral part of this Report.

The extract of the Annual Return of the Company ¢emn accessed on the website of tBempany
www.capol.in.

The copy of the Annual Return of the Company casp dbe accessed on the website of the Company
www.mlgroup.com.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS :

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report,egsired under regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015, forms part of the Annual RepsAMNEXURE NO:V

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

NAMES OF THE PERSONS WHO HAVE BEEN APPOINTED / CEASED TO BE DIRECTORS
AND/OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY:

i. DURING THE YEAR :-

a) During the year the Board has appointed Mr. Mea&eihar (DIN: 02051004) as an Additional
Director of the company with effect from 23.05.201#hd also confirmed as a director by the
shareholders at the AGM held on 13.08.2019

b) During the year the Board has also appointed Myadlém Sekhar (DIN: 02051004) as a Whole
Time Director, CEO & KMP of the company with effefcom 23.05.2019 for a period of five
years i.e 23.05.2019 to 22.05.2024. and the seaseapproved by the shareholders.

c) During the year Mr. Maddi Lakshmaiah (DIN- 00013B8Was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the company by the shareholders of ¢benpany by way of passing a Special
Resolution at the AGM held on 13.08.2019.

d) During the year Mr. Maddi Venkateswara Rao (DINODB393), retire by rotation under Article
122 of the Articles of Association of the Compangdabeing eligible, offer himself for
reappointment as Director. The shareholders ajgprdvs re-appointment as director of the
company at 48 Annual General Meeting of the company held on 82019.

e) Mr. Venkata Subramanya Ravi Vadlamani Din: (0042§10an Independent Director, was
reappointed for a second term of another 5 (fom)secutive years effective frorff April, 2019
by the shareholders of the company by way of pgssiSpecial Resolution at the AGM held on
13.08.2019

f) During the year Mr. Maddi Ramesh, Managing Direatbithe company has resigned from the
office of Managing Director with effect from 23.@919.
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AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND UP TO THE D ATE OF THE REPORT :-

DIRECTORS LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION IN ENSUING A NNUAL GENERAL
MEETING :

1. Mr. Maddi Venkateswara Rao (DIN- 00013393), reting rotation under Article 122 of the
Articles of Association of the Company and beingible, offer himself for reappointment as
Director. The Board recommends his reappointment.

2. Mr. Maddi Ramesh (DIN- 00013394), retire by ratatiunder Article 122 of the Articles of
Association of the Company and being eligible, offanself for reappointment as Director. The
Board recommends his reappointment.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDIPENDENT DIRECTORS IN ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING :

Subject to approval of shareholders at this ensAmgual General Meeting of the company, the Board
has re-appointed Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Saradé Blr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju as an
independent Directors of the company for a peribiive years w.e.f 19.03.2020 for second term.

Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada and Mr. Shyamad@raakkaraju, Independent Directors, who are
supposed toretire in this year, they being eligible for re-apgment and as per the recommendation
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, threiappointment for a second term of another 5
(five) consecutive years effective from™ March 2020 is very much beneficial to the compang
therefore it is desirable to continue to avail thegirvices as an Independent Directors. Accordiiidgty
proposed to reappoint Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi &arand Mr. Shyama Prasad Lakkaraju as an
Independent Directors of the Company not liableetire by rotation and to hold office for a second
term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the BoarthefCompany.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:

Mr. Satyanarayana Kothuri has been re-appointed@sief Financial Officer & KMP of the company
by the Board for a period of five years with efféom 19.03.2020

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMA NCE OF ITS
COMMITTEES AND OF DIRECTORS :

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Aat tre Listing Regulations, the Board has carried ou
an annual evaluation of its own performance, peréorce of the Directors as well as the evaluation of
the working of its Committees. The NRC has defitbd evaluation criteria, procedure and time
schedule for the Performance Evaluation procesthéoBoard, its Committees and Directors.

The performance of the Board and individual Direstwas evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs
from all the Directors. The performance of the Cdttees was evaluated by the Board after seeking
inputs from the Committee Members. The criteria gerformance evaluation of the Board included

aspects such as Board composition and structdestieEness of Board processes, contribution in the
long term strategic planning, etc. The criteria j@erformance evaluation of the Committees included
aspects such as structure and composition of Cdpenit effectiveness of Committee meetings etc.
The above criteria for evaluation was based orhielance Note issued by SEBI.

In a separate meeting, the Independent Directoeduated the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and performance of the Board as a wholey also evaluated the performance of the
Chairman taking into account the views of Execubnectors and Non-Executive Directors. The NRC
reviewed the performance of the Board, its Commétand of the Directors. The same was discussed
in the Board Meeting that followed the meeting lné tndependent Directors and NRC, at which the
feedback received from the Directors on the peréorce of the Board and its Committees was also
discussed. Significant highlights, learning andiaactpoints with respect to the evaluation were

discussed by the Board
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SI. No Particulars
i. Observations of board evaluation carried outtffier year: NIL
ii. Previous year’s observations and actions taken: NIL
iii. Proposed actions based on current year obsensa NIL

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIREC TORS:

In terms with Section 149 (7) of the Companies 2€t]13, all the Independent Directors of the Complaawe
declared that they meet the criteria of Independéncterms of Section 149(6) of the Companies 26113
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI(LODR) Regulatiorts,3. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the
conditions of independence as specified in the akat the Rules made thereunder and are indepentiém o
management.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS :

During the year under review, one meeting of Indejeat Directors was held on 11.02.2020 in compéganith
the requirements of Schedule 1V of the Companiets 2@13. Two independent directors viz., Mrs.|&adndi
Lakshmi Sarada and Mr. Lakkaraju Shyam Prasaele httended to the meeting held by them on 1102®.2
The Independent Directors at their meeting, intier, aeviewed the Performance of Non-Independenédors
and Board as a whole Performance of the Chairpeofathe Company taking into account the views of
Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. éssed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flofv
information between the Company Management an®dzed that is necessary for the Board to effecyieid
reasonably perform their duties.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS :

During the Financial Year 2019-20, Four (4) Meeting the Board of Directors of the Company werel .,
23%May, 2019, 18 August, 2019, 1™8November, 2019, and £2 February, 2020, with a gap not exceeding a
period of 120 days as prescribed under the Act.

Board Meetings

S. Date of meeting Total Number of dlrectqrs Number of directors attended
No. as on the date of meeting
1. 23.05.2019 05 4
2. 13.08.2019 07 7
3. 13.11.2019 07 6
4, 12.02.2020 07 5

A. Attendance of Directors

s Number of Meetings Number of
: Name of the Director which were entitled to .
No. Meetings Attended
attend
1. Mr. Maddi Lakshmaiah 03 3
2. Mr. Meadem Sekhar 03 3
3. Mr. Maddi Venkateswara Rao 04 3
4, Mr. Maddi Ramesh 03 2
5. Mr. Vadlamani Venkata Subramanya Ravi 04 3
6. Mrs. Rallabandi Lakshmi Sarada 04 3
7. Mr. Lakkaraju Shyam Prasad 04 4
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GENERAL MEETINGS :

During the Financial Year 2019-20, "#3Annual General Meeting of the Company was heldroaesday 1%
August, 2019. Except the 43 Annual General Meeting, no other meeting of thembers were held in
financial year 2019-20.

Date of Total No. of Attendance
Type of Meeting Meeting members entitled | No. of members % of total
to attend attended shareholding
Annual General Meeting 13.08.2019 306 14 66.54

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :

In conformity with the provisions under Section 13} (c¢) which is introduced by the Companies A]13
your directors confirm that:-

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for #er ynded March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting
standards read with requirements set out underdbéhdll to the Act, have been followed and there
are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected sound accounting peslicind applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable addrntrso as to give a true and fair view of théesta
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 @inithe profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient éar¢he maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act fofegamarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregtides;i

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accoungés'going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial wols to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and asraimg effectively;

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ermpliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and aoeeffictively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE :
(a) BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF TERMS OF REFERENCE :

The Terms of Reference of this committee covemtiagters specified for Audit Committee under Sect@i
of the Companies Act, 2013, and as follows:

a. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting mse and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statenigigbrrect, sufficient and credible.

b. Recommending the appointment and removal of exteanditor, fixation of audit fee and
approval for payment for any other services.

c. Reviewing with management the annual financialest&nts before submission to the Board,
focusing primarily on:

- Any changes in accounting policies and practices

- Major accounting entries based on exercise of juelgrby management

- Qualifications in draft Auditors’ Report

- Significant adjustments arising out of audit

- The going concern assumption

- Compliance with stock exchange and legal requirésneancerning financial statements

- Any related party transactions i.e. transactionthefcompany of material nature, with promoters
or the management, their subsidiaries or relatates that may have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large.
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d. Reviewing with the management, external and inteanalitors, and the adequacy of internal
control systems.

e. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit functiowgluding the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the officisading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

f.  Discussion with internal auditors of any signifitéindings and follow up there on.

g. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigaoby the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failof internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the Board.

h. Discussion with external auditors, before the aadihmences, the nature and scope of audit as
well as have post audit discussion to ascertaireaeg of concern.

i. Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk managampelicies.

j- Other matters as assigned/specified by the Board fime to time.

k. The scope of the Audit Committee also includes ensttwhich are set out in SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015 and the rules made there undamasded from time to time.

() COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEA R:

As on 3f'March, 2020, The Audit Committee comprises of Bhiedependent cum Non-Executive Directors.
The committee comprises as follows:

Directors Chairman/ Member Category
Mr. Vadlamani Venkata Subramanya Ravi Chairman N.&.D
Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada Member I & N.E.O
Mr. Lakkaraju Shyama Prasad Member | & N.E.D

During the year, the Audit Committee was constdutmder Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013itnd
meetings were held four times during the year erMarth 31, 2020.

Audit Committee Meetings

S. Date of meeting Total Number of Directors Number of Directors
No as on the date of meeting attended

1. 22.05.2019 03 2

2. 12.08.2019 03 3

3. 12.11.2019 03 2

4, 11.02.2020 03 2

Attendance of Audit Committee Members

S. Name of the Director No of Meetings which | No. of Meetings
No were entitled to attend Attended

1. | Mr. Vadlamani Venkata Subramanya Ravi 04 3

2. Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada 04 3

3. | Mr. Lakkaraju Shyama Prasad 04 3

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION :

The current policy is to have an appropriate mixeatcutive and independent directors to maintaa th
independence of the Board, and separate its furectid governance and management. As on March 20,20
the Board consists of six members, three of whoeniradependent directors. The Board periodicallylatas
the need for change in its composition and size.

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointmant remuneration, including criteria for determai
qualifications, positive attributes, independen€ea alirector and other matters provided under Sadbien (3)

of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopedhe Board is recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. We affirm that the remutiengpaid to the directors is as per the terms taitin

the nomination and remuneration policy of the Conypa
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :
(a) TERMS OF REFERENCE :

The Company had constituted the Nomination and Remation Committee under Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The scope of the Committee micludes matters which are set out in SEBI (LQDR
Regulations, 2015 and the rules made there undermended from time to time. The broad terms afrezfce
are to determine and recommend to Board, appraighe performance of the Managing Directors/Whiree
Directors and to determine and advise the BoardHerpayment of annual commission/compensatioringo t
Non-Executive Director and to recommend to the Bagppointment/reappointment and removal of Director
To frame criteria for determining qualificationgqgitive attributes and Independence of Directois tancreate
an evaluation framework for Independent Directord the Board.

(b) COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEA R:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee compriséstotal three Non-Executive Directors cum
Independent Directors and it meets twice in a year.
The committee comprises as follows:

Directors Chairman/ Member Category
Mr. Vadlamani Venkata Subramanya Ravi Chairman N.&.D
Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada Member | & N.E.D
Mr. Lakkaraju Shyama Prasad Member | & N.E.OO

The Committee held two meetings during the yeaedrdarch 31, 2020.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings

S, Date of meeting Total Number of d'rethrS Number of directors attended
No as on the date of meeting

1. 12.08.2019 03 3

2. 11.02.2020 03 2

Attendance of Nomination and Remuneration Committeeneetings

S. . No of Meetings which| No. of Meetings
No Name of the Director were entitled to attend Attended

1. Mr. Vadlamani Venkata Subramanya Ravi 02 1

2. Mrs. Rallabhandi Lakshmi Sarada 02 2

3. Mr. Lakkaraju Shyama Prasad 02 2

(c) SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS :

The Board has based on recommendations of the Ndioinand Remuneration Committee, laid down
following policies:

1. Policy for Determining Qualifications, Positigtributes and Independence of a Director
2. Policy for Board & Independent Directors’ Evaioa

(d) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS:

Based on the criteria laid down in the Policy fealeation of Board and Independent Directors, tluard
carried out the annual performance evaluation @arBa@Committees and the Independent Directors, valsesiea
separate meeting, Independent Directors evaluaiegerformance of Executive Directors, Board ashalev
and of the Chairman. Nomination and Remuneratiorm@itee also evaluated individual directors’
performance.
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i) As per the said Policy, evaluation criteria fraluation Board inter alia covers: Compositionigit of
business complexities and statutory requiremestapéishment of vision, mission, objectives anduealfor
the Company; laying down strategic road map for @mnpany & annual plans; growth attained by the
Company; providing leadership and directions to @mmpany and employees; effectiveness in ensuring
statutory compliances and discharging its dutiessponsibilities towards all stakeholders; Idecdifion,
monitoring & mitigation of significant corporateskis; composition of various committees, laying down
terms of reference and reviewing committee’s wagleic.

ii) Performance evaluation criteria for Executivedators inter alia include: level of skill, knovdge and core
competence; performance and achievement vis-awilgdi and operating plans; effectiveness towards
ensuring statutory compliances; discharging dutisgbnsibiliies towards all stakeholders;
reviewing/monitoring Executive management perforagaradherence to ethical standards of integrity &
probity; employment of strategic perception andifiess acumen in critical matters etc.

iii) Performance of Independent Directors is eviddabased on: objectivity & constructivity while eerising
duties; providing independent judgment on strateggrformance, risk management and Board’'s
deliberations; devotion of sufficient time for imfoed decision making; exercising duties in bonae fid
manner; safeguarding interests of all stakeholdeasticularly minority shareholders; upholding etii
standards of integrity & probity; updating knowledgf the Company & its external environment etc.,

iv) Committees of the Board are evaluated for tipeirformance based on: effectiveness in dischardinigs
and functions conferred; setting up and implemértadf various policies, procedures and plans,ctiffe
use of Committee’s powers as per terms of refergrex@odicity of meetings, attendance and partitgmeof
committee members; providing strategic guidancetite Board on various matters coming under
committee’s purview etc.,

(e) REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS :

The Committee has formulated Policy for Remuneratib Directors, Key Management Personnel and other

employees. As per the Policy, remuneration to Nxgeative Independent Directors include:

a. Sitting Fees for attending meetings of therBa@s well as Committees of the Board as decidetidypBoard
within the limits prescribed under the Companies Ac

b. Travelling and other expenses they incur foerating to the Company’s affairs, including attemgdin
Committee and Board Meetings of the Company.

» REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS :

The appointment and remuneration of Executive Banescincluding Managing Director, Joint Managing
Director and Whole Time Director is governed by theommendation of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, resolutions passed by the Board of Birecand Shareholders of the Company. The remuaerat
package of Whole Time Director, comprises of salagrquisites, allowances and other retirement fitsrees
approved by the shareholders at the General Meetihthe Company.

*  REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS :

The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneratiprwhy of Sitting Fees. The Non- Executive Directars
paid sitting fees for each meeting of the Board @adhmittee of Directors attended by them.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :

As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Riggments) Regulations, 2015, Corporate Governance
Report with auditors’ certificate thereon shall betmandatory for the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM :
The Company has set up vigil mechanism to enalelethployees and Directors to report genuine coscand

irregularities, if any in the Company, noticed bem. The Whistle Blower Policy/ vigil mechanism (as
amended) has been posted on the Website of the &onfpww.capol.in & www.mlgroup.com)
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PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UND ER SECTION 186 :

There were no Loans, Guarantees, Investments aoditses given/made/provided by the Company duthng
Year.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELAT ED PARTIES :

All related party transactions that were enteredngduthe financial year were on at arm’s lengthi®asd were
in the ordinary course of business. There are faiem party transactions made by the Company witiak
have a potential conflict with the interest of tBempany at large and thus disclosure in Form AO€-Aot
required and the Details of Transactions with #lated parties were mentioned in the Notes formiarg of the
Accounts.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGUL ATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY :

There are no significant and material orders passethe Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which ldou
impact the going concern status of the Company.

AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES :
The Board of Directors of your company, has decidetito transfer any amount to the Reserves forytze
under review

DIVIDEND :

The management do not recommend any dividend fry&ar ending March, $12020 in view of the low
earnings made by the Company.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL :

During the current year, there has been no chaoger@d in the capital Structure of the company.

AUDITORS :
i. STATUTORY AUDITORS :

M/s. NATARAJA IYER & CO., Chartered Accountants were apyed as Statutory Auditors of your Company
at the Annual General Meeting held on™August, 2017, for a term of five consecutive yea&s per the
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act,20ke appointment of Auditors is required to bifieal by
Members at every Annual General Meeting

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act,72@hforced on 7 May, 2018 by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Aok is not required to be ratified at every AnhGaneral
Meeting. The Report given by the Auditors on tmficial statement of the Company is part of thisdRe

The Statutory Auditor’s report does not make anglifjaation, reservation or adverse remark or @suokr in
his report

i. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS :

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the CoriggarAct, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial PersfriRules 2014, the Company has engaged services of
M/s. K. Srinivasa Rao & Co, Company SecretarieRriactice, Guntur to conduct the Secretarial Autlithe
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 202t detailed reports on the Secretarial Standands
Secretarial Audit in Form MR- 3 are appended agmmexure Il to this Report. There were no quaiifions,
reservations or adverse remarks given by Secrefauiitors of the Company.
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iii. COST AUDITORS :

In terms of Section 148 of the Act read with CompanCost Records and Audits) Rules, 2014, the tAudi
Committee recommended and the Board of Directoppiaged M/s. Jithendra Kumar & Co, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 103347), Vijayawada to coctd@ost Audit relating of the Company for the yeading
31st March, 2021. The Company has received theitemrconsent that the appointment will be in ademce
with the applicable provisions of the Act and ruiesned thereunder

Members are requested to consider the ratificaifothe remuneration payable to M/s. Jithendra Ku&#&o,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 103347)ayéwada as has been set out in the Notice of #fe 4
AGM of the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS :

The Company is required to maintain cost recordspasified by the Central Government under subiere¢l)
of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed e@hader, and accordingly, the Company has made and
maintained such cost accounts and records

COST AUDIT :

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2848 with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit@Ru
2014 as amended from time to time, Cost Audit ipligable to the company for the financial year 2@09
M/s. Jithendra Kumar & Co, Cost Accountants (FirmgRtration No. 103347), Vijayawada has carried cos
audit of the company for the financial year 2019-20

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUAL IFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE COST AUDITOR IN
HIS REPORT :

The Cost Auditor’s report for the year ended 32030 does not make any qualification, reservatioadverse
remark or disclaimer in his report

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS :

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditd€ost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors haverapbrted
any instances of frauds committed in the Companit@fficers or Employees, to the Audit Committeeder

Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, detdilshich needs to be mentioned in this Report

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT :

There have been no material changes and commitmehtsh affect the financial position of the compan
which have occurred between the end of the finduygiar 31.03.2020 to which the financial statemeatate
and the date of this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREI GN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO :

The information required to be given pursuant totida 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, rewih
Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2fiit4dthe year ended March 31, 2020 is given hereih a
forms part of the Board’'s Report (Annexure — II).

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

The information required under Section 197(12) leé Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manabgersonnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Rejport
Annexure -IV. There were no employees in the Comipas per Rule 5(2) of Chapter Xlll, the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial PershriRules, 2014.
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HUMAN RESOURCE :

Your Company firmly believes that employees arerttost valuable assets and key players of businesess
and sustained growth. Various employee benefitseational and team building programs are conduttded
enhance employee skills, motivation as also toefostam spirit. Company also conducts in-housenitrgi
programs to develop leadership as well as techficational capabilities in order to meet futurdeta
requirements. Industrial relations were cordiabtighout the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) :

The provisions of section 135 of the Act, read viitbmpanies (Corporate Social Responsibility PolRy)es,
2014 are not applicable to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT :

During the year, According to the Section 134 (3) ¢f the Act, the company had laid down a polioy f
management of risk. The risk management frameweflnés the risk management approach of the Company
and also includes the periodical review of suckstighe board periodically discusses the signifitarsiness
risks identified by the management and the mitagatheasures to address such risks.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND COMPLIANCE FRAMEWORK :

The Company has an Internal Control System, comunates with size, scale and complexity of its ogerst.
The internal financial controls are adequate amdogrerating effectively so as to ensure orderly effidient
conduct of business operations.

The Internal Control System of the Company has hiesigned to provide for:

5

%

Accurate recording of transactions with internadaks and prompt reporting.
Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards atidiEs.

Compliance with applicable statutes, policies arthagement policies and procedures.
Effective use of resources and safeguarding otasse

5

%

D3

SRS

)
%

The Company has appointed Mr. P.L. Ranganadh and/Mt. Guptha , as Internal Auditors of the Company
The Audit Committee in consultation with the Interiuditors formulates the Scope, functioning, pdigity
and methodology for conducting the internal au@ite internal auditors carryout audit, covering linddia,
monitoring and evaluating the efficacy and adequadpternal control systems in the Company, itmpbance
with operating systems, accounting procedures atidigs at all locations and submit their periodiiceiernal
audit reports to the Audit Committee. The interaadlitors have expressed that the internal congsies in the
Company is effective. The Board has also put incglaequisite legal compliance framework to ensure
compliance of all the applicable laws and that ssidiems are adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 :

Your directors confirm that the Company has adopt@alicy for prevention of Sexual Harassment ofriféo
at workplace and has set up Committee for impleatemt of said policy. Your directors confirmed thhe
Company has complied with provisions relating te tonstitution of Internal Complaints Committee enthe
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preverfiovhibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Duringybar
Company has not received any complaint of harassmen

UNSECURED LOANS RECEIVED FROM DIRECTORS DURING THE YEAR 2019-20 :

During the year 2019-20, the Company has receiveddowing loans from the following Directors.

S.No Name of the Director Amount Received durirg ybar

1. Maddi Ramesh Nil

PUBLIC DEPOSITS :
During the year under review, your Company hasawcepted any deposit within the meaning of Sectit$s

and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the @amies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (inetud
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)tf@ time being in force).
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REGISTRAR'S AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS :

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Compamy/s Bigshare Services Private Limited, 306, Babr,
Right Wing, Amrutha Ville, Opp. Yashodha Hospitahj Bhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad — 500 082.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS :

The Directors have devised proper systems and gsesefor complying with the requirements of apjpliea
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute ahfimy Secretaries of India and that such systems we
adequate and operating effectively.

TRANSFER OF UNPAID AND UNCLAIMED AMOUNT TO IEPF :

Pursuant to the provisions of section 124 of then@anies Act, 2013, the declared dividends whichaiaed
un paid or unclaimed for a period of seven yeaesiehbeen transferred by the company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) establishethéyCentral Government.

The following are the details of dividends paid thye Company and respective due dates for trandfer o
unclaimed dividend to IEPF.

Dividend Year Date of Declaration of Dividend Ddete for transfer to IEPF
2012-13 05-08-2013 06-09-2020
2013-14 11-08-2014 12-09-2021
2015-16 10-08-2016 11-09-2023

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS :

Your Directors wish to express their grateful aggtion for the continued co-operation receivedrfrGanara
Bank, Financial Institutions, Stock Exchanges, Goreent Authorities, Customers, Vendors and Stakdsrel
during the year under review.

Your Directors place on record their deep appramsiaib employees at all levels for their hard wat&dication
and commitment. The Board places on record itseggigtion for the support and co-operation your Canyp
has been receiving from its suppliers, distribytogtailers, business partners and others assdcidte it as its
trading partners. It will be your Company’s endaavim build and nurture strong links with the trdziesed on
mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operatigtih each other, consistent with consumer intsrest

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Meadem Sekhar)
Place : CHILAKALURIPET Whole Time Director & CEO
Date : June 30, 2020. (DIN: 02051004
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

for financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

| REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i |CIN

L15143TG1975PL C001967

ii [Registration Date

12/12/1975

iii IName of the Company

Coromandel agro products and oils limited

iv [Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited By Shares/ Indian Non-Government Company

v |Address of the Registered office
& contact details

12-B, SKYLARK APARTMENTS, BASHEERBAGH,
HYDERABAD, Telangana, India-500029.
Email: capol @mlgroup.com,

Website : www.capol.in & www.mlgroup.com

vi |Whether listed company

YES

vii |Name, Address & contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 306,3rd Floor, Right
Wing, Amrutha Ville, Opp.Y ashoda Hospital,
Raj Bhavan Road, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500082.
(CIN U99999MH1994PTC076534)

I PRINCIPAL BUSINESSACTIVITIESOF THE COMPANY :
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

S Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
: . Rs.

No products/services Product /service of the company

1 |Cotton Seed D.O.C 111 44,05,44,978 44.86

2 |Cotton Seed Washed Qil 111 41,74,00,764 42.50

3 |Cotton Seed Hulls 111 9,93,49,529 10.12

Il PARTICULARSOF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: NIL

5 HOLDING/ % OF (APPLICAB
No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ |SHARES LE

ASSOCIATE HELD | SECTION

NA NA NA NA NA NA
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1V SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity) :

(i) Category-wise Share Holding :

ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
theyear

year

No. of Sharesheld at the end of the

%
change
during

theyear

Demat

Physical

% of
Total | Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

A.PROMOTERS:

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

1,68,77

1,68,773

36

2,02,

P73 -

2,02,

25.60 #.24

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.

¢) Bodies Corporates

3,74,663

3,74,663

47.43

3,74,463 -

3,74,

d) Bank/FIIS

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

5,43,43(

5,43,436

.19

5,76,936 -

5,76,

036 7B8.03 4.24

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FlI

e) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of
Promoter

(A)=A)D+HA)2)

5,43,43(

5,43,436

68.

/9

5,76,936 -

5,76,

036 7B8.03 4.24

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDI

NG :

() Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FlI

1,62,37

c¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIIS

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

1,62,374

| 1,62,374

55

63,2

63,

P49

$:.01 12|54
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(2) Non Ingtitutions
a) Bodies corporates - 2,050 2,050 0.26 - 2,050 2,050 0.26] - -
i) Indian - - - - - - - - - -
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - -
b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - -
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs - 82,140 82,140 10.40| 67,475| 80,290|1,47,765| 18.70| - -
ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of

Rs.1 lakhs - - - - - - - - - -
c¢) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - -
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): - 84,190 84,190 10.66| 67,475| 82,340|1,49,815| 18.96| - -

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)*+(B)(2) - 2,46,564| 2,46,564| 31.21(1,30,724| 82,340(2,13,064| 26.97| - -

Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs - - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 543436| 2,46,564| 7,90,000] 100.00| 7,07,660| 82,340| 7,90,000] 100.00| - -
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(i) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS :

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year y
0
% of % of % of total| % of change
Sl Sharehold N total shares shares | shares | in share
No. arenholders Name shares | pledged of the [ pledged| holding
No. of of the |encumberd N© of company|encumbg during
shares company| d to total shares redto |the year
shares total
shares
1 [Mr. Maddi Lakshmaiah 23685 3.00 - - - - -3.00
2 [Mr. M.Venkateswara Rao 23410 2.96 - 65980 8.35 - 5.39
3 |Smt. M.Seetha Devi 18885 2.39 - - - - -2.39
4 [Mr. M.Ramesh 32765 4,15 - 32765 4.15 - -
5 |Smt. M.Soumya 13385 1.69 - 13385 1.69 - -
6 |Kum. M.Sanhita 11335 143 - 11335 1.43 - -
7 |Smt. M.Radhika 15104 191 - 15104 1.91 - -
8 |Kum. M.Sanjana 15104 191 - 15104 1.91 - -
9 |Smt. M.Lditha 15100 191 - 48600 6.15 - 4.24
10 |M/s.Maddi Lakshmaiah & Co., Ltd. | 153763 19.46 - 153763 19.46 - -
11 |M/s. K.S.Subbaiah Pillai & Co )
(India) Ltd., 120900 15.30 - 120900 15.30 -
12 |M/s. ML Agro Products Ltd., 100000 12.66 - 100000 12.66 - -
Total 543436 68.79 - 576936 73.03 - 4.24

(i) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF  THERE IS NO CHANGE) :

Sl. Share holding Pattern

No. No. of Shares % of total shares of the company
At the beginning of the year 543436 68.79
At the end of the year 576936 73.03
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holdersof GDRs &
ADRs) :

Shareholding at theend of | Cumulative Shareholding
the year during the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
No No.of |% of total shares| No.of |% of total shares

shares | of thecompany | shares | of thecompany

1|ICICI Bank Limited
At the beginning of the year 49,563 6.27 49,563 6.27

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
alotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 49,563 6.27 49,563 6.27

2|Nooney Mallikarjuna Swamy
At the beginning of the year 36,500 4.62 36,500 4.62
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 36,500 4.62 36,500 4.62

3|Gobbita Hanuma Krishna Sai
At the beginning of the year 31,625 4.00 31,625 4.00
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 31,625 4.00 31,625 4.00

4|Canara Bank, Bangalore
At the beginning of the year 13,686 1.73 13,686 1.73
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 13,686 1.73 13,686 1.73

5|P.M .M ohan Rao
At the beginning of the year 7,510 0.95 7,510 0.95
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
alotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 7,510 0.95 7,510 0.95
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Shareholding at theend of | Cumulative Shareholding
the year during the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
No No.of |% of total shares| No.of |% of total shares

shares | of thecompany | shares | of thecompany

6|T.Mastan Reddy
At the beginning of the year 7,000 0.89 7,000 0.89
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,

if separated during the year) 7,000 0.89 7,000 0.89
7|A.V.Badve
At the beginning of the year 5,110 0.65 5,110 0.65

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
alotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 5,110 0.65 5,110 0.65

8|Mrs. Surekha Anand Badve
At the beginning of the year 5,010 0.63 5,010 0.63
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
alotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 5,010 0.63 5,010 0.63

9[Smt.P.sucharitha M ohan Rao
At the beginning of the year 5,010 0.63 5,010 0.63
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 5,010 0.63 5,010 0.63

10|K .Satyanar ayana
At the beginning of the year 2,650 0.34 2,650 0.34
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share
holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year (or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) 2,650 0.34 2,650 0.34
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(v) Shareholding of Directors& KMP :

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding

S beginning of the year during the year
“| Shareholding of Each Director & Key Managerial Personnel % of total % of total
No No.of No.of
hares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
1 M.LAKSHMAIAH
At the beginning of the year 23,685 3.00 - 0.00
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 23,685 3.00 - 0.00
2 M.VENKATESWARA RAO
At the beginning of the year 23,410 2.96 65,980 8.35
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 23,410 2.96 65,980 8.35
3 M.RAMESH
At the beginning of the year 32,765 4.15 32,765 4.15
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year: purchase of 50 shareson 13.11.2017 throgh transfer of shares - - - -
by way of market sale from Kanakaiah Nallamalli
At the end of the year 32,765 4.15 32,765 4.15
4 K.SATYANARAYANA
At the beginning of the year 2,650 0.34 2,650 0.34
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 2,650 0.34 2,650 0.34

5 |VADLAMANI VENKATA SUBRAMANYA RAVI
At the beginning of the year 51 0.00 51 0.00
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year 51 0.00 51 0.00
6 |RALLABHANDI LAKSHMI SARADA
At the beginning of the year - 0.00 - 0.00

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year - 0.00 - 0.00
7 |LAKKARAJU SHYAMA PRASAD
At the beginning of the year - 0.00 - 0.00

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year - 0.00 - 0.00

8 |K.RAMYA
At the beginning of the year - 0.00 - 0.00
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year - 0.00 - 0.00

9 |Meadem Sekhar
At the beginning of the year - 0.00 - 0.00
Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease - - - -
(e.g. dlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

At the end of the year - 0.00 - 0.00
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V INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accr ued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecur ed Deposits Total

excluding deposits L oans Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 16,37,03,539 3,36,91,842 - 19,73,95,381
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 16,37,03,539 3,36,91,842 - 19,73,95,381
Changein Indebtedness during the financial year
Additions - - - -
Reduction 8,02,02,158 - - 8,02,02,158
Net Change -8,02,02,158 - - -8,02,02,158
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 8,35,01,381 3,36,91,842 - 11,71,93,223
ii) Interest due but not paid - 2729040 - 2729040
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) 8,35,01,381 3,64,20,882 - 11,99,22,263
VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director :
3. Particulars of Remuneration
No M.RAMESH MEADEM SEKHAR

Grosssalary Managing Director WTD & CEO Total Amount

1 [(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 2,61,290 15,43,548 18,04,838
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 3,600 - 3,600
(c) Profitsin lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - -

2 |Stock option - - -

3 |Sweat Equity - - -

4 [Commission - - -
as % of profit - - -
others (specify) - - -

5 |Others 4,000 - 4,000
Total (A) 2,68,890 15,43,548 18,12,438
Ceiling as per the Act
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Remuner ation to other directors:

No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total
Amount

M.Lakshmaiah

M.V.R.

M.Ramesh

V.V.SRavi| R.L.S

L.S.Prasad

Independent Directors

(a) Fee for attending board and committee meetings -

10,000 12,000

14,000

36,000

(b) Commission -

(c) Others, please specify -

Total (1) -

10,000 12,000

14,000

36,000

Other Non Executive Directors

(a) Feefor attending
board and committee meetings 4,000

6,000

4,000

14,000

(b) Commission -

(c) Others, please specify. -

Total (2) 4,000

6,000

4,000

14,000

Total (B)=(1+2) 4,000

6,000

4,000

10,000 12,000

14,000

50,000

Total Managerial Remuneration

18,62,438

Overall Cieling as per the Act.

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/WTD :

Particularsof Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Gross Salary

Company
Secretary

CFO

Total

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

3,00,000

9,31,392

12,31,392

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profitsin lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

N

Stock Option

w

Sweat Equity

Commission

as % of profit

others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

9,31,392

12,31,392

d3LINITSTIO ANV S1ONAd0dd Od9V T13ANVYINOHOD
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VIl PENALTIESPUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Details of
Section of the Brief Penalty/Punishment/ Authority

Companies Act | Description Compounding fees (RD/NCLT/Court)
imposed

Appeal made if
any
(give details)

Type

A. COMPANY NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERSIN DEFAULT NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Meadem Sekhar)
Place: CHILAKALURIPET Wholetime Director & CEO
Date : June 30, 2020 (DIN:02051004)
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ANNEXURE-II TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :
1. Energy Conservation Measures taken during theear :

In line with the company’s commitment towards caomagon of energy, all units continue with
their endeavour to make more efficient use of enettyough improved operational and

maintenance practices. The measures taken initbigtidn at the unit are as under:

a)
b)
c)

d)
e)

f)

Continuous Conservation of energy is accorded pigirity;

Our R&D team continuously reviews ongoing peses;

All manufacturing plants continue their effoits conserving energy in various forms like

energy conservation projects, use of alternatecesut resources, continuous

etc. of energy consumption throughout all planis eurtailing wastages.
Saving in fuel consumption for steam generatiom boiler operation;
Eliminating steam leakages in distribution ofigmted steam;
Employees have been trained in energy conservatieasures;

2. Impact of Energy Conservation Measures :

monitoring

The Energy Conservation Measures which were uridartan the Company have resulted in
reduction in power consumption, fuel consumptiond amproves the overall production
performance.

3. Total energy consumption and energy consumptigmer unit of production :

Form A

(Form for disclosure of particulars with respect b conservation of energy)

A  POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION :

SI.No. Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
1 Electricity:

a) Purchased Units 3284110 3705250
Total Amount X 24809040 I 28179065
Rate/Unit N 7.55 % 7.61

b) Own Generation
1) Through Diesel Generators:

Units 217 477
Units per Ltr. Of diesel Oil 2.89 2.39
Cost/Unit N 23.36 N 12.15
II) Through Steam Turbine/Generators NIL NIL
2 Coal: (Specify quality & where used) Round Coal

"C" Grade used in Boiler. Quantity (Tonnes) NIL NIL

Total Cost % NIL 3 NIL

Average Cost 3 NIL 4 NIL

3 Furnace Oll NIL NIL
4 Others/Internal Generation:

Rice Husk (Tonnes) 1999.962 2074.440

Total Cost I 4601023 I 5328900

Average Cost X 230056 X 2568.84
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B CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION :

Sl.No. Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

1 ELECTRICITY:

Cotton Seed 84.29 Units 90.00 Units
2 COAL:

Cotton Seed - -
3 Furnace Oil - -
4 RICE HUSK for Steam Generation:

Cotton Seed 51.33 Kgs 50.38 Kgs

4. Steps taken by the company for utilising altesrsmurces of energyslone

5. Capital investment on energy conservation eqerminmiNone

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION
Continuous efforts are being made towards techyobdgsorption, adaptation and innovation.
Quality being the thrust area, the company has bseng effective steps to continue to improve

guality to compete with international quality stands. LED lights are installed in place of regular
tube lights in plant to reduce energy consumption.

Installation of Energy Monitoring System for graagecuracy of energy consumption

1. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:
Improved capability and productivity to meet thestomer requirements.
2. Efforts in brief, made towards Technology ap$ion, adaptation and innovation:

The Company is continuously taking steps to impribseproduct and process technology in an
effort to provide superior quality and cost effeetproducts to consumers .

3. Imported Technology:

--- None ---

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGOINGS :

Your Directors wish to inform that the Company leaported702.900M.T. of Cotton Linters worth

% 97.88lakhs during the year under review as against&@2M.T. worth I 132.45 lakhs in the
previous year.
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31°" MARCH, 2020
[ Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuner ation Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s. Coromandel Agro Products and QOils Limited,
Hyderabad

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the tiarmge of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Candel Agro Products and Oils Limited
(hereinafter called the Company) for the finangiahr ended 31.03.2020. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasorsis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinienstim.

Based on our verification of the Company’s boolapgrs, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and alsdrtformation provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representativemgiuhe conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby
report that in our opinion, the company has, dutireyaudit period covering the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2020 complied with the statutoryvjsions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and complianoechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made heremafte

We have examined the books, papers, minute boaksjsfand returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial yeadeshon 31st March, 2020 according to the
provisions of:

(). TheCompaniesict, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii). The Securities Contracts (Regulation) AQ56 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii). The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulasi@nd Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv). Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 aedtites and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Oeais Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v). The Following Regulations and Guidelines pridsd under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Subatakcquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Praioibiof Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (IssticCapital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009(up to 10th November, 2018) armiBees and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Reigns, 2018 (with effect from 11th
November,2018): (Not applicable to the Companyrduthe Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SiBased Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the Aidiriod);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indiaidssd Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Canypduring the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (&eays to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act aadirty with client;

(g9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delistf Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Auditi®&r and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Bk of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
Securities and Exchange Board of India (BuybackSeturities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
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(vi). The Company has identified the following laas specifically applicable to the Company:
1. Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and tles rabhde thereunder;
2. Vegetable Oil Products Production and Avail&pilRegulation) Order, 2011.

We have also examined compliance with the applkcalaluses of the following :

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute ofifiamy Secretaries of India.
The Listing Agreement entered into by the Compaith Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
and the Uniform Listing Agreement entered with 8#d stock exchange pursuant to the
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 8asure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(applicable with effect from 0lst December, 201Buring the period under review the
Company has complied with the provisions of the, ARtles, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above

We further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly ciostd with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independziréctors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the petimder review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act

Adequate notice is given to all directors about sabedule of the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seysnmdadvance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications dlne agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting

Majority decision is carried through while the dising members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes

We further report that there are adequate systechgm@cesses in the company commensurating with
the size and operations of the company to monitdremsure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines

We further report that during the audit period,réhare no specific events/ actions having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance eflflws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards,
etc., referred to above
For K. Srinivasa Rao & Co.,
Company Secretaries.,

Sd/-
Place: Guntur K. Srinivasa Rao, Partner
Date : 30" June, 2020. FCS. No. 5599/ C. P. No: 5178

This report is to be read with our letter of evertedwhich is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To,

The Members

M/s. Coromandel Agro Products and Oils Limited
Hyderabad

Our report of even date is to be read along withIdtter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record & tasponsibility of the management of the comp&y:
responsibility is to express an opinion on theseetarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practicesl @nocesses as were appropriate to obtain reasonabl
assurance about the correctness of the conterttseoBecretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct factseflexted in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provigasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctnesd appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtaihedManagement representation about the compliaihce o
laws, rules and regulations and happening of ewatnots

5. The compliance of the provisions of Qwgte and other applicable laws, rules, regulations
standards is the responsibility of management. éxamination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neitharassurance as to the future viability of the amy nor of

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the mamaget has conducted the affairs of the company.

For K. Srinivasa Rao & Co.,
Company Secretaries.,

Sd/-
Place: Guntur K. Srinivasa Rao, Partner
Date : 30" June, 2020. FCS. No. 5599/ C. P. No: 5178
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Annexure - [V TO THE BOARD'S REPORT
DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDE R SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WTH RULE 5(1)
OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF M ANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Directorto the median remuneration of the employees of theompany for the financial year 2019-20 and the
comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Brsonnel (KMP) against the performance of the Compay are as under:

Remuneration of Ratio of remuneration of Remuneration off% Increase/(Decrease
Sl. |Name of the Director/KMP and| Director During . . Directors During| in Remuneration in
each Director/to median

No. Designation the F.Y 2019-20 - the F.Y 2018-19 the Financial Year
remuneration of employeeq

(Amount In Rs) (Amount In Rs) 2019-20

1 Maddi Ramesh 2,68,890 2.366 19,83,600 (86.44)
Managing Director

2 Meadem sekha 15,43,548 13.580 0.000 0.00
Whole time Director & CEO

3 Maddi Venkateswara Rao 6,000 0.053 2,000 200.00
Director

4 Maddi Lakshmaiah 4,000 0.035 8,000 (50.00)
Chairman

5 V.V.S. Ravi 10,000 0.088 7,000 42.86
Director

6 L.Shyam Prasac 14,00( 0.12: 15,000 (6.67,
Director

7 R.Lakshmi Sarade 12,00( 0.10¢ 15,000 (20.00

Women Director

i) The Median Remuneration of Employees of the Compangluring the Financial Year was Rs. 1,13,664.

ii) There were 158 permanent employees on the rolls tife Company as on 31st March, 2020.

iii) There were no employees in the Company as per Ru¢2) of Chapter Xlll, the Companies(Appointment andRemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014.

iv) In the Financial Year 2019-20, There was a decreas¢ 0.97% in the median Remuneration of employees.

V) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid @ector to that of the employees who are not directrs but receive remuneration in excess of the higbepaid
director during the year — Not Applicable; and

vi) The key parameters for the variable component of nauneration availed by the directors are consideretby the Board of Directors based on the
recommendations of the Human Resources, Nominaticand Remuneration Committee as per the RemuneratioRolicy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Employees.

vii) Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid isas per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Keyanagerial Personnel and other Employees.

A3LINITSTIO dNV S1ONA0dd 04OV THANVINOHOD
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS :

1.

(@)

This section shall include discussion on the follaymatters within the limits set by the listed
entity’s competitive position:

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS :

The Edible Oil market is likely to witness a staggtewth rate over the forecast period driven by
growing demand from emerging markets. Increasingly disposable incomes, rising urbanisation
rates, changing dietary habits along with strengtige buyer power will support the
Edible Oil market growth between 2020 and 2026.

Considering the rapidly changing market landscapepanies are changing their perspectives on
expanding beyond traditional markets. In addit@fotusing on widening applications, introducing
new product portfolios, most food and beverage orgs are planning to capture
domestic and international markets.

Challenges related to distribution channels, irgensmpetition, pricing issues and shifting
consumer preferences will continue to put pressareendors’ profit margins.

The retail segment is anticipated to boost thessad edible oils owing to reputable chain of detai
outlets and sturdy supply chain of edible oil prctduVegetable oil usage has elevated in developing
nations owing to surging retail sector, rising rieggnent from growing population, and incrementin
the general household revenue. In addition to thikers of edible oils are accepting enhances
techniques of processing to provide affordablefaalthier oil.

The global market for edible oil is expected to aeeonsiderable development due to rising
consumer health concerns towards the high prevalgfimoronary heart deceases, diabetes, obesity
etc., are primarily driving the demand for heaktayble oil. In the forthcoming years, vegetabls oi
with low fat, cholesterol, and calories are expedi® receive huge reply owing to increasing
awareness of health amongst users all over thedwapgart from this, foremost enhancement in
retail network, rising economies, and increasingpmduction & crop yields are few of the well-
known reasons backing the development of the glotaaiket. In addition to this, rising fame of
trans-fat free soybean oil & canola oil as welpasmising preference for olive oil will boost the
global edible oil market. Additionally, alteringedary habits, improving living standards, and
increasing user preference for healthy edible @l supporting the development of the global
market.

(b) OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS :

Demand for edible oils in the domestic market esafjand one of the trends emerging in the market
that will have a positive impact on the growthtwe inarket up to pre-Covid -19 pandemic. But the
Covid-19 Pandemic have influenced negatively orctresumption of Edible oils. Fluctuating price
of raw material, restrictions on exports and impngosed due to Covid-19 restictions and
guidelines imposed by WTO are the major challemgéise market. The fluctuation in the price is
also due to various reasons such as environmexatak§, crop diseases, and others. A fluctuation in
the price of raw materials may have an adverse é¢tnpa the growth of the market during the
forecast period.
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(c) SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE :
Presently the company has dealing in segmentsedf@@cessing and Wind turbine generators.

Seed ProcessingThe overall performance of the company is béttepite of low yielding Cotton
Seed (main raw material) and onslaught of COVIDB&cause of heavy rains in cotton growing
areas and delayed procurement, the company cautghedduction from 1st November 2019, which
was delayed by 15 days, and recoveries from predessed of 38965 MT (41176 MT in the
previous year), were low compared to the last y@aly respite for the company was it could get
better average sale prices for all the productsgtfor linters. The demand for linters did notipic
up as Chinese market is still suffering with heeagession.

Because of high prices of Cotton Seed and low gjediiscriminatory approach was adopted by the
company in procurement calibrating sale prices pnodluction costs. This approach made the
company to sell almost all processed products duhi@ year itself, except linters and leavingtkelit
inventory for unseasonal months. The company aeliemurnover of Rs.9820.75 lakhs as against
Rs. 9560.87 lakhs in the previous year. The grosfit pefore taxes was Rs.60.09 lakhs as against
Rs. 28.76 lakhs and due to adjustment of diffeagdiabilities net profit for the period under rewi

was Rs.38.14 lakhs against Rs.82.78 lakhs durim¢ptit year.

The procurement of Cotton Seed during COVID-19 ttmkn and later became herculean task
because of low volumes and unviable prices. Thidédto shutdown of the factory in May 2020
itself.

Wind Turbine Generators : The power projects in Tamil Nadu and Gujaratrébtido well due to
changed wind patterns and generated low incomesoV 56 lakhs compared to Rs. 82.95 lakhs
during the previous year.

OUTLOOK :

Edible oil market in India is projected to growrm@round $ 21.5 billion in 2019 to $ 35.2 billion b
2025 due to increasing disposable income and rigngumer awareness about healthy lifestyle &
wellness. Moreover, strong marketing activitieddnding edible oil brands, changing tastes and
preferences of consumers, expanding populationshifithg consumption pattern towards branded
oils is leading to rising consumption of ediblesaiil the country. Surging penetration of processed
foods is expected to continue driving consumptiéredible oils in the country. West India
dominated the country's edible oil market in 2048¢ the region is expected to maintain its
dominance during the forecast period. East and Véggins also account for a significant market
share, with the South region grabbing the smafiesket pie.

Because of current stagnant domestic vegetablgupiplies, vegetable oil import volumes will
continue to fill the majority of the supply-and dena gap over the next decade. However, vegetable
oil consumption growth has been putting a lot esgure on India’s trade balance and budget due to
the high dependence on imports. The Indian govenhmight need to step up its efforts to increase
domestic oilseed production or pursue other opfisush as opening up to imports of GM oilseeds
in order to cater to the country’s rising vegetatilelemand. The favourable consumer dynamics of
Indian market like rising disposable incomes, est@al population, urbanization and fast growing
health consciousness among Indian population haistke industry at high pedestrian. All these
factors will be the growth benefactors of edibles @ the near future. Also, although Indian per
capita consumption of edible oils is on the risa,we still lag behind the developed nations of the
world which construes as a massive opportunityethble oil players
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(d) RISKS AND CONCERNS :

Owing to high import dependence, the edible oilcgsi in India are directly correlated to
international oil price movements and currency nmoeets that make profitability vulnerable to
unexpected fluctuations. The domestic edible adgzrare directly linked to the prices of imported
palm and soybean oil due to heavy reliance on itspamd their substitutability with other oil
varieties. While mustard oil is almost entirely guoed within the country, soya bean oil is imported
in significant quantities, Palm oil is almost eelyrimported in crude form (for refining in port-
based refineries) as well as in refined form. Githenhigh volatility in international edible oilipes

and restriction on exports and imports due to @d¥ virus ,the domestic participants are exposed
to the risk of unexpected squeeze on margins becalumismatch between the prices of raw
materials and final products (which are both linkedomestic factors as well as global ones. Due to
implementation of Covid-19 Lock Down’s it imgad negatively on Production.

Your Company continues to place a strong emphasiBerisk management and has successfully
introduced and adopted various measures for hedggngrice fluctuations in order to minimize its
impact on profitability. Also, your Company hagdiated setting-up of a framework to upgrade itself
to a robust risk management system. The key detents of business risk profile of the company
are their ability to overcome the regulatory risidagro-climatic conditions. Other operational
factors include operating efficiency, product daigr, market position, and ability to secure raw
material as well as the commaodity price and foisk-management systems.

Thus, your Directors are optimistic in utilizitige production capacities and to overcome the
post COVID-19 pandemic, to ensure better workirsyits in the ensuing years.

(e) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

(f)

(9)

The Company has well-established processes anteddhe roles and responsibilities for people at
various levels. The control mechanism also involwedl documented policies, authorization
guidelines commensurate with the level of respdilitsitspecific to the respective businesses.
Adherence to these processes is ensured throughefie internal audits. The internal audits
conducted are reviewed by the Audit Committee aagiisite guidelines and procedures augment
the internal controls. The internal control systisndesigned to ensure that financial and other
records are reliable for preparing financial staeta and other information which ensures that all
transactions are properly reported and classifigtie financial records.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE :

Cotton Seed is being processed on scientific lzasigproducing Edible Oil, De-oiled cake, Hulls
and Linters. The Operational revenue of the comganyhe period under review increased to
I 9820.75Lakhs as compared ® 9560.87 Lakhs registering a growth rate of 2.72%aan
annualized basis. The profit before Tax for thaficial year under report wa&60.09Lakhs as
againsk 28.76 Lakhs profit in the previous year.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT :

Statements in the Boards’ Report and ManagemerntuBéson and Analysis describing the
Companies objectives, projections, estimates, ¢apens may be “forward looking statements”
within the meaning of applicable security laws segllations. Actual results could differ materially
from those expressed or implied. Important factbed could make difference to the company’s
operations include, among others, economic comditieffecting demand / supply and price
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conditions in the domestic and overseas marketghinh the Company operates, changes in the
Government regulations, tax laws and other statesncidental factors.

2. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT :

Where in the preparation of financial statementising) the year there was no different treatment
from that prescribed in an Accounting Standarddess followed, the fact shall be disclosed in the
financial statements.

OTHER KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS :

Ratios 2019-20 2018-19 Change| % Change
Debtors Turnover * 17.82 15.94 1.88 11.80%
Inventory Turnover * 8.42 5.36 3.06 57.20%
Interest Coverage Ratio ** 2.80 2.01 0.79 39.11%
Current Ratio 1.51 1.24 0.27 21.73%
Debt Equity Ratio » 0.37 0.35 0.02 6.63%
Operating Profit Margin (%) ** 0.44 0.11 0.33 307.47%
Net Profit Margin (%) " 0.39 0.87 (-) 0.48| (-)55.15%
Return on Net Worth "M 3.34 7.50 () 4.16| (-) 55.47%

Notes: *Increase in Debtors and Inventory turnavere primarily on account of quick liquidation of
stocks during the year in proportion to the turmafethe company in FY 2019-20. **The increase in
Interest Coverage Ratio, Operating Profit Margiresimproved primarily due to increase in progessi
volume, reasonable prices prevailed for raw mdte@ad thereby the Company made Net Profit made
by the Company during the year. ~As the Compangidiaving much debt, Debt Equity ratio is almost
the same even in 2019-20. ~Change in nettprairgin and Return on Net Worth is because of the
income-tax adjustments made against the profitseelain the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Coromandel Agro Products and Qils Limited

Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemets

Opinion

1. We have audited the standalone financial statemeht€oromandel Agro Products and Oils
Limited (‘the Company'), which comprise the Balarfseeet as at 31 March 2020 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Coshgnsive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year thedte@érand notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accountingligies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone firerstatemens”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our informatioaccording to the explanation given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements giveiff@mation required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and gaverue and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in Indithe state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and profit (including other compmeas$ive income), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year then ended.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we bring to yourtetion to the following:

1. Due to the continuous spreading of COVID -19 actadgfa, the Indian Government announced
a strict 21-day lockdown on March 24, 2020, whichswurther extended till May 17, 2020
across the India to contain the spread of the viFbis has resulted in restriction on physicaltvisi
to the Company’s location and to rely on alterrataudit procedures as per the Standards on
Auditing prescribed by the Institute of Charterectuntants of India (ICAI).

2. As a result of the above, the entire statutorytanfdihe Company has been carried out based on
remote access of the data as provided by the Compdais has been carried out based on the
advisory on “Specific Considerations while condogtDistance Audit/ Remote Audit/ Online
Audit of Company under current Covid-19 situatiaebued by the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board of ICAI. We have been represengatido General Manager / Chief Financial
Officer of the Company that the data provided for @udit purposes is correct, complete,
reliable and are directly generated by the accogrgi/stem of the Company without any further
manual modifications.

3. If we have carried out the audit physically at @@mpany location, we might have been able to
verify further sufficient appropriate audit evidenaegarding the documentation records
supporting the transactions.

4. The Company has, based on current information ablail and based on the controls on
information systems established for remote accdsdata for preparation of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 repted that all documentation records in
respect of the transactions are being maintaineggply and no further impact is expected on the
financial performance of the Company for the yeadesl March 31, 2020 other than those
included in the trial balance of the Company.

5. The financial performance of the Company has bdwrs fprepared and presented by the
company and audited by us in the aforesaid comditio

6. We have also considered the disclaimers given irr@uort on Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting and our comments on mattemsrmed in Company Auditors Report order
2016 in determining the nature, timing and extdrdauwalit procedures applied in our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the companytizndisclaimer does not affect our opinion on
the standalone financial statements of the company.

7. We draw attention to Note 2.40 to the standalonanitial statements for the year ended March
31, 2020, which describes the uncertainties andhthpagement’s assessment of the financial
impact of the outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) the business operations and financial
position of the Company, In view of the highly urtaegn economic environment, a definitive
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assessment of the aforesaid impact in the subsepgagads is dependent upon circumstances as
they evolve. Our conclusion is not modified irstmatter.

Basis of Our Opinion

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Stadsdon Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitiesdenthose SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the &@alone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in aecwel with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAdpether with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone finandialesnents under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled ouero#thical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethice. hlieve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate read witbcliimer made under Emphasis of matter to
provide a basis for our opinion on the standalamenicial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit Matters (‘'KAM") are those matters that our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of standalone financiatements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the stemgsfinancial statements as a whole and in fornoimg
opinion thereon and we do not provide a separdteéaspon these matters.

We have determined the matters depending on the & circumstances of the entity and the audit
performed that there are no key audit maters tonwanicate as there are no significant audit judgdsnen
relating to areas in the Standalone financial statds that involved significant management judgémen
including accounting estimates that have beeniiiikshias having high estimation and uncertainty.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Staements and Auditors’ Report thereon.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibletifiar preparation of the other information. Theeoth
information comprises the information included lie tManagement Discussion and analysis and Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, bogl not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statemepes not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone fficial statements, our responsibility is to readdtieer
information and, in doing so, consider whether dtiger information is materially inconsistent wittet
standalone financial statements or our knowledgaiméd during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we corecthat there is a material misstatement of thigroth
information, we are required to report that fadte have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the standalone finacial statements

4.  The Company's Board of Directors is responsibletier matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to theeparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of tlmaritial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity, cash floflMhe Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) and othec@mting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintecenf adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding #esets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selectand application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that aasanable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intefinahcial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and complessnof the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalonexdinhstatements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whetherntddiraud or error.

5. In preparing the standalone financial statementanagement and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s abilitgdntinue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern antjube going concern basis of accounting unless
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management either intends to liquidate the Compmnto cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Board of Directors is also responsible for ovensgéne Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

7.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuraboeit awhether the standalone financial

statements as a whole are free from material niésaent, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that include our opini®easonable assurance is the high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an auditicted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaténoam arise due to fraud or error and are
considered material it, individually or in the aggate, they could reasonably expected to
influence the economic decisions of users takenthen basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we ezger professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. Vée:al

» Identify and assess risks of material misstatenoérthe standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perfanitgprocedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidences that is sufficient apgrapriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material magstnent resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may invobalusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentation, or the override of the intecaaitrol.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relévanthe audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstandeder section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are responsible for expressing our opinion on idrethe Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalonaficial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policised and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures madehagement.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the managemesgsthe going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidences @botaiwhether any material uncertainty
exists related to the events or conditions that n@st significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern. If we con@ubat a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s reporthe related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures aradequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidences ebtaip to the date of our auditor’ report.
However, future events or conditions may causeCthimpany to cease to continue as going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure andtert of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and everasnanner that achieves fair presentation.

9. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements im tstandalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probabletttiee economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone financiakstants may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors(inplanning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to lexsie the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

10. We communicate with those charged with governaregarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and sigmticaudit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identifyrthg our audit.

11. We also provide those charged with governance avghatement that we have complied with the

relevant ethical requirements regarding indepergleland to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may be res&bpha thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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12.

From the matters communicated with those chargéu gagvernance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of dione financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We desthiése matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure abthé matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter shoulbencommunicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonaléxected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

13.

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) @y®016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11)thked Act, we give in the “Annexure A", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraam 3! of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reploat:

a) we have sought and obtained, read with disclaimedemunder Emphasis of matter, all the
information and explanations which to the bestwflmowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as requingdbw have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of thosekbpo

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement Profit and Lodsidimg other comprehensive income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement oli E&sv dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone finanstatements comply with Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7hef Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

e) on the basis of the written representations redefi@n the directors as on 3March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, nondhef directors is disqualified as on®*31
March, 2020 from being appointed as a directoeims of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internadritial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of suchraen refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

g) with respect to the matters to be included in theifor's Report under section 197(16) of the
Act as amended.

h) In our opinion and according to the information aerplanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directarsng) the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedtof the Act.

i) with respect to the other matters to be indugethe Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rug&14 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according togkplanations given to us:

i) the company has disclosed the impact of pentifiggitions on its financial position in
the standalone financial statements- Refer Note2R0.to the standalone financial
statements.

i) the Company has no long-term contract includidgrivative contracts requiring
disclosure of material foreseeable losses;

iiiy there has been no delay in transferring amsurgquired to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For NATARAJA IYER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ICAI FRN : 002413S

Sdl-
(E.SRI RANGANATH)

Place : Hyderabad PARTNER
Date :30.06.2020 ICAI Membership No. 013924
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of e’en date to the members of Coromandel
Agro Products and Oils Limited on the standalone fiancial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2020.

Based on the audit procedures performed for thegmer of reporting a true and fair view on the
standalone financial statements of the Companytakithg into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the information exawhiby us in the course of audit, and to the best o
our knowledge and belief and in light of the mattstated in the Emphasis of Matter Paragraph. we
report that:

0] a) The Company has maintained propeonds showing full particulars including quantiati
details and situation of propeRiant and Equipment..

b) The Company has a regular program of physicefiegion of its Property, Pland and
Equipment under which these assets are verified phased manner over a reasonable
period of years which, in our opinion, is reasoeabhving regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Howevenfasmned during the year no physical
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment wasducted as per phased programme
due to covid 19 lockdown.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable propert{@hich are included under the head
‘Property, plant and equipment’) in the standaléinancial statements are held in the
name of the Company.

In respect of immovable propertieketa on lease and disclosed as Property, Plant and
Equipment in the standalone financial statemehts]dase agreements are in the name of the

company

(i) In our opinion, the management has conductéysgal verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year. No matersdrdpancies were noticed on the aforesaid
verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanatigiven to us, the company has not granted any
loans, whether secured or unsecured, to the coemalfiims or other parties covered in the
Register maintained u/s. Sec. 189 of the Compahits2013 during the year. Hence sub
clauses (a) and (b) of clause 3(iii) of the orderraot applicable to the company for the year.

(iv) According to the information and explanatioivan to us, the company has not given any
loans, investments, guarantees, and securityynimstef provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013, and hence the sub-clawsis fiot applicable to the company for
the year.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits durengdhr and hence, in our opinion, the
sub-clause (v) is not applicable to the companytferyear.

(vi) As informed, the Company has made and taaird cost records and accounts as specified
by the Central Government under Section 148 ofobmpanies Act, 2013.However, we have
not made a detailed examination of the cost recmitlisa view to determine whether they are
accurate / complete.

(vi)  (a) The company is generally regutadepositing the undisputed statutory dues indgdi
employees provident fund, employees’ state inswamcome-tax, goods and services
tax, duty of customs, Cess with the appropriatbaities;

According to the information and explanation givedo us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, Employeesit&tinsurance, Income-tax, Goods
and Service Tax, duty of Customs, Cess and otheeriah statutory dues, were in
arrears as at 3IMarch, 2020, for a period of more than six morftiosn the date they
became payable.
(b) The net dues outstanding in respect of dutgxafse and service tax on account of dispute
are as follows:
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Period Forum yvhere Cess No. Total Paid
pending Demand

01.11.2007 ta CESTAT APPEAL NO. Refund to be
01.05.2008 ta CESTAT APPEAL NO. 3,14,152 | 3,14,152
31.11.2008 CESTAT ST/1383/2010 dt 27.07.2010
01.03.2009 tg SOUTHERN | CESTAT APPEAL NO. 4,01,327 NIL
30.09.2009 ZONE ST/2796/2011 dt 17.01.2012
01.01.2012 tg BENCH  ['cESTAT APPEAL MISC ORDER NO 427,622 | 2,13,811
31.03.2012 21180/2015 dt 27.07.2015
01.03.2011 g CESTAT NO. E/21557/2014-DB Refund | tobe
28.02.2012 received

(vii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place : Hyderabad
Date :30.06.2020

The Company has not defaulted in repaymdribans or borrowings to banks. The Company
has no loans or borrowings payable to government domes not have any outstanding
debentures.

The Company did not raise any money by waynitfal public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and did not have amntloans outstanding during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of tBeder are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and accordmghe information and explanation given to us,
no material fraud by the Company or on the Comganits officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the period covered hyaudit.

In our opinion and according to the informatiand explanation given to us, managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided by the Cognparaccordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of sectionrgéfd with Schedule V to the Companies
Act 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as pection 406 of the Companies Act,2013 and
hence the sub-clause (xii) is not applicable toctirapany.

According to the information and explarati given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 anddf88ompanies Act, 2013 and details have
been disclosed in the standalone Financial Statesmehe extent applicable.

The company has not made any prefereatlatment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the yeateurreview and the sub-clause (xiv) is not
applicable to the company for the year.

The company has not entered into any namcamansactions with directors or persons
connected with them with regard to the provisios@dtion 192. Hence the sub-clause (xv) is
not applicable to the company for the year.

The company is not required to be registeneder section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 andhence, this clause is not appleto this company.

For NATARAJA IYER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ICAI FRN : 002413S

Sd/-
(E.SRI RANGANATH)
PARTNER
ICAI Membership No. 013924
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of @en date to the members of Coromandel
Agro Products and Oils Limited on the standalone fiancial statements for the year ended 31
March, 2020

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Finandal Controls Under Clause (i) of Sub-
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Act :

In conjunction with our audit of the standaloneaficial statements of Coromandel Agro Products and
Oils Limited (the Company) for the year ended 3Wstrch, 2020, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of tbempany as of that date.

Basis for disclaimer

As explained vividly in the Emphasis of Matters ggnaph, we are unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to verify the existenténternal financial controls over the financial
reporting and whether they are operating effectivel

Disclaimer of Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information a&xglanations given to us and based on the matters
specified in the Basis for Disclaimer Paragraphvabeve are unable to express our opinion on the
existence of internal financial controls over tieahcial reporting and their operative effectivenes
compliance for the year ended March 31, 2020, basettie internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company consideringefgential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financialn@ols over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

We have considered the above disclaimers in deténgithe nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures applied in our audit of the standaldnantial statements of the company and the
disclaimer does not affect our opinion on the Saédmrak financial statements of the company

Management's Responsibility For Internal FinancialControls:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibledstablishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over finahogporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internatrob stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repagtiasued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities includbe design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were atpeg effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adineseto company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds eanots, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparatiorebélle financial information, as required undez th
Act.

Auditor's Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion ond¢bhmpany’s internal financial controls over finarcia
reporting based on our audit. We conducted ourtandiccordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by ICAI and prescribed under Section 143¢1@he Act, to the extent applicable to an audit o
internal financial controls, and a guidance noseésl by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requiretseand plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Irfieerecial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controlsabpe effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtidit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reportiagd their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
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internal financial controls over financial repogiincluded obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assegsthe risk that a material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operatirecfeness of internal control based on the asdesse
risk. The procedures selected depend on the algditiigment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Standalone findsteéements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaigedufficient and appropriate, read with
disclaimer made as above to provide a basis foaadit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A Company's internal financial control over finaaicreporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityingintial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purpose in accordance gétherally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls over finahegporting include those policies and procedures
that:

(@) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inoresde detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets afdhgany;

(o) Provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statement in accordance with generaltgepted accounting principles and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are bemgle only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and

(c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiotinely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company&etssthat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of Internabficial controls over financial reporting , inclugin
the possibility of collusion or improper managemewerride of controls, material misstatements due
to error of fraud may occur and not be detectedoAprojections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to freuperiods are subject to the risk that the inferna
financial control over financial reporting may beminadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policiepracedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company, in all material redpeaead with basis for disclaimer has, an adequa
internal financial controls system over finaicreporting and such internal financial colst
over financial reporting were operating effectively at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal
Control over financial reporting criteria estabiéd by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guoidda Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institofe Chartered Accountants of India. (ICAI).

For NATARAJA IYER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ICAI FRN : 002413S

Sd/-
(E.SRI RANGANATH)
Place : Hyderabad PARTNER
Date :30.06.2020 ICAI Membership No. 013924
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(Rupees)
. Asat
Particulars NOte31d March, 2020 315 March, 2019
I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 8,12,35,312 8,85,80,973
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 22 850 850
(c) Other non-current assets 2.3 1,22,19,703 1,21,86,468
Total Non-Current Assets 9,34,55,865 10,07,68,291
(2) Current assets
() Inventories 24 11,66,34,766 17,85,01,746
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 25 5,50,96,622 5,99,68,152
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 26 1,80,773 2,62,454
(iii)Other Bank balances 2.7 1,42,337 1,42,337
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 2.8 13,70,985 8,04,792
(d) Other current assets 29 1,32,12,123 67,87,882
Total Current Assets 18,66,37,606 24,64,67,363
Total Assets 28,00,93,471 34,72,35,654
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
() Equity Share capital 2.10 79,00,000 79,00,000
(b) Other Equity (Refer SOCE) 10,62,27,966 10,24,13,080
Total Equity 11,41,27,966 11,03,13,080
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 211 3,64,20,882 3,36,91,842
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 212 61,93,772 49,37,038
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,26,14,654 3,86,28,880
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 2.13 8,35,01,381 16,37,03,539
(ii) Trade payables 214 1,99,44,812 1,83,83,055
(iii) Other financial liabilities 2.15 1,42,337 1,42,337
(b) Other current liabilities 2.16 1,97,62,321 1,60,64,763
Total Current Liabilities 12,33,50,851 19,82,93,694
Total Equity and Liabilities 28,00,93,471 34,72,35,654
Significant Accounintg Policies 1
Notes on Accounts 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
For and on behalf of the board
As per our report attached
for NATARAJA IYER & CO,, Sd/-

Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN : 002413S

Sd/-
(E.SRI RANGANATH)

Partner
M.No : 013924

Place: HYDERABAD
Date : June 30, 2020.
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Whole Time Director & CEO (Din No. 02051004)

Sa/-

(MADDI VENKATESWARA RAO)

Director (Din N0.00013393)

Sa/-

(KOTHURI SATYANARAYANA)
Chief Financial Officer

Sal/-
(K.RAMYA)

Company Secretary

Place: CHILAKALURIPET
Date : June 30, 2020.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(Rupees)

For the Year Ended

Particulars Note  31st March 2020  31st March 2019
Revenue From Operations 2.17 98,20,75,489 95,60,87,691
Other Income 2.18 16,98,231 18,45,907
Total Income 98,37,73,720 95,79,33,598
EXPENSES
Cost of material's consumed 2.19 81,25,13,938 82,95,16,862
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods 2.20 6,08,26,391 54,12,574
Employee benefits expenses 2.21 1,39,67,590 1,52,99,269
Finance costs 222 1,06,71,787 1,66,51,327
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.23 74,09,754 85,14,333
Other expenses 224 7,23,75,231 7,96,62,778
Total expenses 97,77,64,691 95,50,57,143
Profit beforetax 60,09,029 28,76,455
Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax 212 9,37,409 5,53,430
(2) Deferred tax 212 12,56,734 (59,55,344)
Total Tax Expense 21,94,143 (54,01,914)
Profit after Tax 38,14,886 82,78,369
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to

profit or loss - -

(i) Income tax relating to items that will

not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Itemsthat will be reclassified to

profit or loss - -

(i) Income tax relating to items that will

be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total Comprehensive Incomefor the period 38,14,886 82,78,369
Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 225 4.83 10.48
(2) Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 225 4.83 10.48
Significant Accounintg Policies 1
Notes on Accounts 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report attached

for NATARAJA IYER & CO.,,
Chartered Accountants

ICAl FRN : 002413S

Sd/-
(E.SRI RANGANATH)
Partner
M.No: 013924

Place: HYDERABAD
Date : June 30, 2020.
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For and on behalf of the board

Sd/-

(MEADEM SEKHAR)

Whole Time Director & CEO (Din No. 02051004)

Sd/-

(MADDI VENKATESWARA RAO)

Director (Din N0.00013393)

Sd/-

(KOTHURI SATYANARAYANA)

Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

(K.RAMYA)

Company Secretary

Place : CHILAKALURIPET
Date : June 30, 2020.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY (SOCE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

A. CHANGESIN EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Rupees)

Particulars Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Outstanding at the beginning 79,00,000 79,00,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Outstanding at the end 79,00,000 79,00,000
B. CHANGESIN OTHER EQUITY
For the year ended 31st March, 2020
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other
Comprehensive
. . . Capital Income Acturial
ER:rt?izgg General Reserve Igeiilrt\i R:/g:?/t;on Redemption Gain/(L oss) and Total
Reserve Revaluation
surplug/(deficit)
Asat 1st April, 2019 4,31,74,906 5,33,37,268 51,62,375 - 6,00,000 1,38,531 10,24,13,080
Profit / (Loss) for the Y ear 38,14,886 - - - - - 38,14,886
Asat 31st March, 2020 4,69,89,792 5,33,37,268 51,62,375 - 6,00,000 1,38,531 10,62,27,966
For and on behalf of the board
As per our report attached
for NATARAJA IYER & CO.,
Chartered Accountants Sd/-

ICAl FRN : 002413S

Sd/-
(E.SRI RANGANATH)
Partner
M.No : 013924

Place : HYDERABAD
Date : June 30, 2020.

(MEADEM SEKHAR)
Whole Time Director & CEO (Din No. 02051004)

Sd/-
(MADDI VENKATESWARA RAOQO)
Director (Din N0.00013393)

Sd/-
(KOTHURI SATYANARAYANA)
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
(K.RAMYA)
Company Secretary

Place: CHILAKALURIPET
Date : June 30, 2020.
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2.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Following ar e the changesin the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st M ar ch, 2020 (Rupees)
. Accumulated
GrossCarrying | Additions A?i?r?(lris Gross Carrying gccfzcgﬁtoe: Depreciation Deoreciation depreciation on| Accumulated Carrying Carrying
Description of Assets Valueasat during the dLJJrin the Valueasat epasat Adjustment fgfthe car disposals/ |depreciation as| Valueasat Valueasat
01.04.2019 year g 31.03.2020 (Refer 2.1.2) y adjustments | at 31.03.2020 | 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
year 01.04.2019 :
during the year

Land -freehold 44,66,858 - - 44,66,858 - - - - 44,66,858 44,66,858
Land and site Development
- leasehold

- Oil 10,92,769 - - 10,92,769 35,462 - 18,880 - 54,342 10,38,427 10,57,307

-WTG 16,25,341 - - 16,25,341 3,05,710 - 1,19,966 - 4,25,676 11,99,665 13,19,631
Building 1,51,56,049 - - 1,51,56,049 79,91,570 - 6,43,435 - 86,35,005 65,21,044 71,64,479
Plant and Machinery 3,53,93,903 - - 3,53,93903 | 1,54,69,484 - 28,72,149 - 1,83,41,633 1,70,52,270 1,99,24,419
Wind Turbine Generators 6,39,13,809 - - 6,39,13,809 | 1,03,09,692 - 35,32,665 - 1,38,42,357 5,00,71,452 5,36,04,117
Electrical Equipment 500 - - 500 - - - - - 500 500
Furniture & Fittings 11,130 - - 11,130 5,282 - 1,033 - 6,315 4,815 5,848
Laboratory Equipment 200 - - 200 - - - - - 200 200
Vechiles 15,31,524 - 18,500 15,13,024 6,58,147 - 1,79,002 11,186 8,25,963 6,87,061 8,73,377
Computers 3,70,895 71,407 - 4,42,302 2,06,658 - 42,624 - 2,49,282 1,93,020 1,64,237
Total 12,35,62,978 71,407 18,500 12,36,15,885 | 3,49,82,005 - 74,09,754 11,186 4,23,80,573 8,12,35,312 8,85,80,973
Previous year total 12,35,33,525 29,453 - 12,35,62,978 | 2,03,38,843 61,28,830 85,14,333 - 3,49,82,005 8,85,80,973 -
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(Rupees)

Particulars

AsAt

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

2.2INVESTMENTS
Other investments

Post office saving certificate (Deposited with DittSupply Office) 850 850
Total 850 850

23 0THER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Security Deposits (Unsecured, Considered Good) 1,22,19,703 1,21,86,468
Total 1,22,19,703 1,21,86,468

24 INVENTORIES

(At lower of Cost or net realisable value)

Raw Materials 41,87,944 48,90,214

Finished Goods 8,80,39,782 14,88,66,173

Stores and Spares 2,38,97,012 2,42,40,064

Loose Tools 5,10,028 5,05,295
Total 11,66,34,766 17,85,01,746

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, considered good 5,50,96,622 5,99,68,152
Total 5,50,96,622 5,99,68,152

2.6 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with Banks 97,271 63,494

Cash on hand 83,502 1,98,960
Total 1,80,773 2,62,454

2.7 Other Bank Balances

Earmarked balances with banks - Unpaid/Unclaimed 1,42,337 1,42,337
Total 1,42,337 1,42,337

2.8 Currrent Tax Assets(Net)

Advance Tax 20,11,875 11,19,065

TDS Receivable 2,96,519 2,39,157

23,08,394 13,58,222

Less: Provision for Tax for the year 9,37,409 5,53,430
Total 13,70,985 8,04,792

29 0THER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances to Suppliers 92,68,465 19,565

Advances for expenses 17,72,898 20,29,431

Advances for others 15,90,448 40,80,125

Others 5,80,312 6,58,761
Total 1,32,12,123 67,87,882
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(Rupees)

Particulars

AsAt

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

2.10EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:

Equity Shares: 14,00,000 (PY 14,00,000) of Rs. par-value 1,40,00,000 1,40,00,000

Preference Shares:10,000 (PY 10,000) of Rs. 1@d/vadue 10,00,000 10,00,000
Total 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000
I ssued:

Equity Shares: 8,90,000 (PY 8,90,000) of Rs. 18r-value 89,00,000 89,00,000
Total 89,00,000 89,00,000

Subscribed and Paid-Up:

Equity Shares: 7,90,000 (PY 7,90,000) of Rs. 18r-value 79,00,000 79,00,000
Total 79,00,000 79,00,000

The Company has issued only one class of sharesedfto as Equity Shares having a par value ol®s. Each Equity
Shareholder is entitled to one vote per share

(i) Equity Shareholdersholding morethan 5% shares:

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Name Number of % of Number of % of
Sharesheld | Shareholding Shares held Shareholding
M/s. Maddi Lakshmaiah & Co., Ltd. 1,53,764 19.4p 1,53,763 1946
M/s. K.S.Subbaiah Pillai & Co., (India) Ltd 1,20,90( 15.3p 1,20,900 1530
M/s. M.L. Agro Products Ltd. 1,00,00( 12.6p 1,00,000 1266
Industrial Development Bank of India - - 99,135 12.55
Mr. Maddi Venkateswara Rao 65,98( 8.3% - -
ICICI Bank Ltd. 49,563 6.2} 49,563 6.27
Smt. Maddi Lalitha 48,600 6.15 - -
(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital :
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Description No. of Share Capital No. of Shar e Capital
Shares in Rs. Shares in Rs.
Number of equity shares at the beginning 7,90,000 79,00,00(0 7,90,000 79,00,00D
Movement in equity during the year - - - -
Number of equity shares at the closing 7,90,000 79,00,00(0 7,90,000 79,00,00D
In the last 5 years, the Company has not :
— allotted any shares as fully paid up pursuasbtaract(s) without payment being received in Cash
— allotted any bonus shares,
— bought back its shares.
PROPOSED DIVIDEND ON EQUITY SHARESNOT RECOGNISED
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Final Dividend - -
Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Total - -
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(Rupees)

Particulars

AsAt

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

2.11 Borrowings

Loan from Others (Unsecured) - Related Parties 26882 3,36,91,842
Total 3,64,20,882 3,36,91,842

2.12 CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

(a) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Liabilities

— On Property, Plant & Equipment 1,70,83,054 1,85,14,555

— On Business Loss (98,88,631) (1,29,60,845)

— On MAT Credit (9,37,409) (5,53,430)

— On Provision for Leave encashment (63,242) (63,242)
Total 61,93,772 49,37,038

(b) Income Tax recognised in Profit and L oss

Current Tax 9,37,409 5,53,430

Deferred Tax 12,56,734 (59,55,344)

Total Income Tax expenses 21,94,143 (54,01,914)

(c) Reconciliation of Income Tax provision to the amount computed by applying the

statutory incometax rate to the income befor e income taxes is summarised below :

Profit before tax 60,09,029 28,76,455

Expected Tax Rate in India 15.60% 19.24%

Computed Tax Expenses 9,37,408 5,53,430

Income not considered for tax purposes - -

Effect of estimated non-deductible expenses - -

Others (including temporary difference) - -

Income Tax expensesrecognised in profit and loss 9,37,408 5,53,430

2.13 Borrowings

Loans repayable on demand(Secured)

-from banks 8,35,01,381 16,37,03,539

Loan from bank is advanced by Canara Bank, secured by Hypatibe of

Raw Materials, Consumable Stores, Finished Goods, Booltslzetul are also

secured by a first charge on the fixed assets except landthrdassets of the

Company related to windmill project. It is further secureg personal

guarantees of Sri M. Lakshmaiah, Promoter Direatat Sri M. Venkateswa

Rao, Director in their individual capacities.
Total 8,35,01,381 16,37,03,539

214 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payable - Micro, Small and Medium enterprises - -

Trade payable - Other than Micro, Small and Medanterprises 1,99,44,812 1,83,83,055
Total 1,99,44,812 1,83,83,055

2.150THER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividend* 1,42,337 1,42,337
Total 1,42,337 1,42,337

* There is no amount due and outstanding to beitertb Investor Education and Protection

Fund as on 31st March, 2020.

2.16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advances received from customers 60,80,744 26,69,202

Other payables 1,36,81,577 1,33,95,561
Total 1,97,62,321 1,60,64,763
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(Rupees'
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
2.17 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from sale of products 98,20,75,489 95,60,87,691
Total 98,20,75,489 95,60,87,691
2.18 OTHER INCOME
Interest on Deposits 5,73,616 10,85,553
Insurance Claims 10,500 3,82,217
Other non-operating income 81,697 83,552
Contract Settlement 10,09,300 -
Export Incentive 23,118 70,369
Sundry Credit Balances written back - 1,21,990
Excess Provision written back - 1,02,226
Total 16,98,231 18,45,907
2.19 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening stock 48,90,214 68,08,156
Add: Purchases 81,18,11,668 82,75,98,920
81,67,01,882 83,44,07,076
Less:
Closing Stock 41,87,944 48,90,214
Total 81,25,13,938 82,95,16,862
2.20 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Finished Goods
Opening Stock 14,88,66,173 15,42,78,747
Less: Closing Stock 8,80,39,782 14,88,66,173
Total 6,08,26,391 54,12,574
2.21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salarle_s,wages anq Bonus (including Overtime, 1,13,35.713 1,18.70.366
Exgratia and Gratuity)
Contribution to provident funds 11,83,618 13,42,869
Workmen and Staff welfare expenses 14,48,259 20,86,034
Total 1,39,67,590 1,52,99,269
2.22 FINANCE COSTS
Interest expenses
(a)Interest on
i) Secured working capital loan 76,39,521 1,33,39,936
ii)Interest on unsecured loans 30,32,266 1,06,71,787 28,61,034 1,62,00,970
(b)Interest on Term Loan - 450,357
Total 1,06,71,787 1,66,51,327
2.23 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses for the year 74,09,754 85,14,333
Total 74,09,754 85,14,333
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(Rupees'

Particulars

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

2.24 Other Expenses
Manufacturing Expenses

Power & Diesel Consumed 2,48,73,694 2,81,84,860

Rice Husk & Coal Consumed 46,51,834 53,29,365

Stores and Spares consumed 2,59,01,581 2,25,02,048

Material Handling Charges 11,91,983 5,66,19,092 15,43,036 5,75,59,309

Repairs & Maintenance

Machinery 27,18,736 80,86,728

Wind Turbine Generators 29,83,941 24,67,156

Building 13,190 57,15,867 60,770 1,06,14,653

Administrative Expenses

Advertisement Expenses 29,808 34,812

Rent 1,41,920 38,596

Insurance 11,68,509 10,78,574

Travelling 4,38,346 4,47,470

Rates & Taxes 7,90,294 8,48,280

Bank Charges 468,134 1,90,675

Printing and Stationery 1,35,097 1,12,297

Legal & Professional Charges 4,89,240 5,27,170

Directors' Sitting Fees 50,000 47,000

Managerial Remuneration & Commission 18,04,838 18,00,000

Loose Tools written off 6,806 37,956

Telephone and Postage Expenses 1,52,036 1,47,330

Subscription and periodicals 2,64,636 82,662

Office Expenses 3,74,263 3,45,605

Advances written off 9,888 4,04,882

Loss on sale of Asset 1,314 -

Vehicle Maintenance 4,03,114 4,58,561

Waste Traetment and Disposal Expenses 25,899 -

Other Expenses 4,667 67,58,809 2,04,545 68,06,415

Auditor's Remuneration

Audit Fee 2,00,000 1,62,000

Reimbursement of Expenses 29,451 2,29,451 21,719 1,83,719

Sales Expenses

Carriage Outwards 4,67,309 32,461

Export Expenses 10,45,700 18,07,152

Other Sales Expenses 15,39,003 30,52,012 26,59,069 44,98,682
Total 7,23,75,231 7,96,62,778

2.25 EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars 31st March 202( 31st March 201¢
Profit for the year 38,14,886 82,78,369
Profit for the year for diluted earning per share 38,14,886 82,78,369
Weighted average number of Ordinary Equity Shasesl in

Computing basic earning per share 7,90,000 7,90,000
Welghtgd average numper of Ordinary Equity Shasesl in 7.90,000 7.90,000
Computing diluted earning per share

Basic earning per share (Rs.) (Face Value of Rpet@hare) 4.83 10.48
Diluted earning per share (Rs.) ( do-- ) 4.83 10.48
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2.27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Capital Management
Company's capital management objectives are to :
- ensure the company's ability to contiase going concern
- provide an adequate return to sharehsloipricing products and services commensuratilytie level of risk

For the purposes of the Company's Capital Management, capitates issued capital and all other equity reserves. Coynpamnages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in thé difbhanges in economic environment and the remqeénts of financial covenants.

(Rupees)
. AsAt
Particulars
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Equity Share Capital 79,00,000 79,00,000
Other Equity Reserves 10,62,27,966 10,24,13,080
Total 11,41,27,966 11,03,13,080
Categories of Finanacial Assets and Financial Liabilitiesas at 31st M arch 2020
(Rupees)
Fair Value . .
Particulars Amortised Cost through Profit Fair Value Total Carrying Total Fair Value
through OCI Value
or Loss
Current Assets
Trade Receivables - - - 5,50,96,622 -
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - - 1,80,773 -
Other Bank balances - - - 1,42,337 -
Total Financial Assets - - - 5,54,19,732 -
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables - - - 1,99,44,812 -
Other Financial liabilities - - - 1,42,337 -
Total Financial Liabilities - - - 2,00,87,149 -
Asat 31st March, 2019 (Rupees)
Fair Value . )
Particulars Amortised Cost through Profit Fair Value Total Carrying Total Fair Value
through OCI Value
or Loss
Current Assets
Trade Receivables - - - 5,99,68,152 -
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - - 2,62,454 -
Other Bank balances - - - 1,42,337 -
Total Financial Assets - - - 6,03,72,943 -
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables - - - 1,83,83,055 -
Other Financial liabilities - - - 1,42,337 -
Total Financial Liabilities - - - 1,85,25,392 -

Financial Risk Management Framework

Company's activities expose it to financial risks afiedit risk and liquidity risk.

Credit Risk

Based on the overall credit worthiness of Receivables, cdupith their past track record, Company expects No / Minimwsk with regards to
its outstanding receivables. Also, there is a mechanisrfairego periodically track the outstanding amount and astbessame with regards to
its realisation. Company expects all the debtors to be eshlisfull, and accordingly, no provision has been made irbibeks of accounts for
doubtful receivables.

Liquidity risk

(i) Liquidity Risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequegenves, banking facilities and by continuously moniand forecasting actual
cash flow and by matching the maturity profiledinncial assets and liabilities.

(i) Maturities of Financial Liabilities

The following tables contains details of the Company's remgi contractual maturities for its non-derivative finaidiabilites with agreed
repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables heem drawn up based on the earliest date on which the Compareaaquired to
pay. Financial Liabilities include Trade Payables, CapPRairchases, Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividends etc., which aré@énnormal course of
business having maturity plan of less than one gedmon interest bearing.
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(Rupees)
Particulars Lessthan 1 1-3years 3yearsto5 5yearsand
Y ear years above

31st March, 2020
Long Term Borrowings - 3,64,20,88 - -
Short Term Borrowings 8,35,01,38 - - -
Trade Payables 1,99,44,81 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 1,42,33 - - -
Total 10,35,88,530 3,64,20,882 - -

31st March, 2019
Long Term Borrowings - 3,36,91,84 - -
Short Term Borrowings 16,37,03,53 - - -
Trade Payables 1,83,83,05 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 1,42,33 - - -
Total 18,22,28,931 3,36,91,842 - -

As at 31st March, 2020, the Company had a workamital of Rs.3,53,32,583/- Including cash andikdaalance & bank deposits of Rs. 3,23,110/-
As at 31st March, 2019, the Company had a workamtal of Rs.40,87,513/- Including cash and bank balance &bdaposits of Rs. 4,04,791/-

(iii) Financial arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawrolong facilities at the end of the reporting period (Rupees)
Particulars 31st March 2020  31st March 2019
Secured Bank Overdraft facility
- Expiring within one year 13,64,98,619 5,62,96,461
- Expiring beyond one year - -
Total 13,64,98,619 5,62,96,461
228 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Defined Contribution plan - ason 31st March, 2020 (Rupees)
Particulars 31st March 2020  31st March 2019
Assumptionstaken by theLIC
Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00%

229 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

List of related partieswith whom transactions have taken place during the year :
i) Related Companies: Nil

ii) Key Managerial Personnel :

a) Sri. M. Sekhz -- Whole Time Director & CE
b) Sri. K Satyanarayal -- Chief Financial Office

c) Smt. K Ramy -- Company Secrete

d) Smt. R. Lakshmi Sar( -- Independent Direct

e) Sri. VVS. Rav -- Independent Direct

f)  Sri. L. Shyama Pras -- Independent Direct

g) Sri. M. Lakshmaia -- Directo

h)  Sri. M. Venkateswara R -- Directo

i)  Sri. M. Ramesh -- Directo

Details of transactions between the Company and itsrelated parties ar e disclosed below: (Rupess)

Asat 31st Asat 31st March

Particulars March 2020 2019

i) Related Companies - -
ii) Kev Managerial Personnel

a) Remuneration and Commission
Sri M. Rames 2,64,89( 19,83,60!

Sri. M. Sekhe 15,43,54: -
Sri K. Satyanarayal 9,31,39: 9,47,92:
Smt K. Ramy 3,00,00( 38,39:

b) Unsecured L oan taken durina the vear
Sri M. Rames - 2,06,12,49

¢) Unsecured Loan repaid durina the vear
Sri M. Rames - 2,24,62,29

d) Unsecured Loan Outstanding asat 31 March 2020
Sri M. Rames 3,64,20,88 3,36,91,84

e) Interest on Unsecured Loan
Sri M. Rames 30,32,26! 46,22,89
f) Sitting Fee
Smt. R. Lakshmi Sart 12,00( 15,00(
Sri. VVS. Rav 10,00( 7,00(
Sri. L. Shyama Pras 14,00( 15,00(
Sri M. Rames 4,00( -
Sri M. Lakshmaia 4,00( 8,00(
Sri M. Venkateswara Ri 6,00( 2,00(
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2.30 Contingent Liabilitiesand Commitments (T o the extent not provided for) (Rupees)

AsAt
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Particulars

Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not ackowledged as debts

Excise Matters in dispute

Service Tax matters in dispute

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be erelcon capital account and not
provided for (net of advances and deposits) - -
Outstanding Bank Guarantees - -
2.31 While letters for confirmation of balance of sundryditers, sundry debtors and material lying with vendors hdeen sent, only few
responded. Rest are subject to reconciliation.

53,772
4,27,622

15,59,197
2,13,811

2.32 Particulars of Managing Director's Remuneratwh other Payments (Rupess)
Particulars Asat 31st Asat 31st March
March 2020 2019
A Following amountswer e paid to the Managing Director/Whole-time Director during the year
M.D. Remuneration:
1 Salary 2,61,290 18,00,000
2 Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund & Superation Fund 3,600 1,83,600
2,64,890 19,83,600
Whole-time Director:
1 Salary 15,43,548 -
15,43,548 -
Computation of Net profit as per Companies Act, 26@wing the calculation of remuneration
payable to the Managing Director
Profit/ (Loss) as per Profit & Loss Account 38,14,886 82,78,369
Add: Provision for Taxes 21,94,143 (54,01,914)
Managerial Remuneration 18,08,438 19,83,600
Profit in accordance with sec 198 @5% thereof 78,17,467 48,60,055
Remuneration payable in accordance with sec 197 @B8péof 3,90,873 2,43,003
However the remuneration paid is in accordance aiith within the limits specified in Schedule V
read with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
Effective Capital as per Schedule V 14,46,47,942 13,81,04,016
Eligible Remuneration as per Schedule V 42,00,000 42,00,000
Salary paid/ payable to Managing Director 2,61,290 18,00,000
Commission payable to Managing Director - -
Salary paid/ payable to Whole-time Director 15,43,548 -

B  Travelling Expenses include NIL paid to Managingegtor (Previous Year NIL) and Rs. 1,40,000
paid to other Directors (Previous Year Rs. 1,30,000)

2.33 SEGMENT WISE INFORMATION

The company has identified two reportable segments vizl Beecessing and Wind Turbine. Segments have been iderifié reported taking
into account the nature of products and services, the diffetisks and returns and the internal business reportistesy The accounting
policies adopted for segment reporting are in\itth the accounting policies of the company

(Rupees)
For the Year ended 31.03.2020 For the Year ended 31.03.2019
Particulars Seed Processing Wind Turbine Total Seed Processing Wind Turbine Total
Generators Generators

Revenue 97,47,19,056 73,56,433  98,20,75,489  94,77,92,773 82,94,918 95,60,87,691
Profit / Loss Before
interest and Tax 1,62,07,816 4,73,000 1,66,80,816 1,76,46,367 18,81,415 1,95,27,782
Interest 1,06,71,787 - 1,06,71,787 1,62,00,970 4,50,357 1,66,51,327
Tax 30,38,729 (8,44,586) 21,94,143 1,08,27,819 (54,25,905) 54,01,914
Profit/ Loss after tax 24,97,300 13,17,586 38,14,886 1,22,73,216 (39,94,847) 82,78,369
Other Information:
Assets 22,40,58,723 5,60,34,748 28,00,93,471 29,12,00,906 5,60,34,748 34,72,35,654
Liabilities 15,26,35,193 1,33,30,312 16,59,65,505 22,26,42,698 1,42,79,876 23,69,22,574
Capital Expenditure 71,407 - 71,407 29,453 - 29,453
Depreciation and 37,57,123 36,52,631 74,09,754 48,42,822 36,71,511 85,14,333

Ammortisation
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SL Particulars For the Year Ended 31.03.2020 For the Year Ended 31.03.2019
No. Quantity (M.T.) Value (Rs) Quantity (M.T.) Value (Rs)
1 Cotton Seed Oil 5771.05I 44,05,44,97 5600.26( 38,38,38,30
2 Cotton Seed Cake 19707.31 41,74,00,76 20852.91 40,93,98,50
3 Cotton Seed Hulls 8301.66! 9,93,49,52 14185.84 13,07,95,34
4 Linters 1st Cut 34.14¢ 4,78,03( 485.92( 70,43,93
5 Linters 2ndCut 702.90( 97,88,23!* 502.02( 73,91,82
6 Cotton Seed Soap Stock 773.72! 64,65,741 1062.42! 83,35,60!
7  Cotton Seed Acid Oil 154.78! 6,59,71! 242.19( 9,76,01(
8 Cotton Seed Sludge Oil 16.03¢ 32,07( 13.24( 13,24(
9 W.T.G. Units 73,56,43. 82,9491

TOTAL 98,20,75,489 95,60,87,691

* These items include export turnover of Rs.97,88/28uring the year ( Rs.1,32,44,788/- Previous Year
2.35 Analysis of Raw material Consumed

SL

For the Year Ended 31.03.2020

For the Year Ended 31.03.2019

No. Particulars Quantity (M.T.) Value (Rs) Quantity (M.T.) Value (Rs)
1 Cotton Seed 38964.978 81,25,13,938 41175.649 82,95,16,862
TOTAL 81,25,13,938 82,95,16,862

2.36 Value of imported and indigenousraw materials, components, stores and spares etc., consumed and per centage of each in total
consumption
SL Particulars For the Year Ended 31.03.2020 For the Year Ended 31.03.2019
No. % age Value (Rs) Y% age Value (Rs)
1 Raw Materials

- Indigenous 10C 81,25,13,93 10C 82,96,08,01

- Imported - - - -
2  Stores & Spares

- Imported - - - -

- Indigenous 10C 2,59,01,58 10C 2,25,02,04

2.37 Export Earningsin Foreign Currency

SL Particulars For the Year Ended 31.03.2020 For the Year Ended 31.03.2019
No. Value (Rs) Value (Rs)
1  Export Turnover on FOB Basis 97,88,230 1,32,4387

2.38 Value of Importson CIF Basis

SL . For the Year Ended 31.03.2020 For the Year Ended 31.03.2019
No. Particulars Value (Rs.) Value (Rs)
1 Spares - -

2.39 DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 :

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been ifledtby the Company on the basis of the informatarailable. Total outstanding dues

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises which are artding for more than the stipulated period arerghelow

(Rupess)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

(a) Dues remaining unpaid as at 31st M

— Principe - -

— Interest on the abc - -
(b) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the Aloihg with the amount of payment made to the seppl

— Principal paid beyond the appointed - -

— Interest paid in terms of Section 16haf Ac - -
(c) Amount of interest due and payable for thequeaf delay in payments made beyond the appointed - -
(d) Further interest due and payable even in sddogeear, until such date when the interest due as - -
(e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaidt 31st Marc - -

2.40. The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic globally and in India issing significant disturbance and slowdown of economicvétgtiln view of
the lock down across the country due to COVID-19 pandemicratipms in many of our locations (manufacturing, procegsselling and
distributions, offices, etc) were scaled down or shut dowieompliance with the directives / orders issued by the lpeaichayat / Municipal
Corporation / State / Central Government authorities.

The Company has made initial assessment of its cash flow éaneht one year and the carrying values of its assets as aaldrece sheet date and
has concluded that there are no adjustments required iimgduecial statements. Management believes that it has fat@account all the possible
impact of the known events arising from COVID-19 pandemichia preparation of the financial statements as on 31.03.288@ever, the
impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process ghemmncertainties associated with its nature and duratidreaoordingly the impact
may be different from the estimated as at the date of appaflese financial statements. The Company will continue doitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

2.41. Previous period figures are re-arranged / re-gedupherever necessary.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

As per our report attached

for NATARAJA IYER & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

ICAI FRN : 002413S

(Rupees)
Particulars 31st March 2020  31st March 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Tax for the year 60,09,029 28,76,455
Adjustmentsfor :
Depreciation and amortisation 74,09,754 85,14,333
Losson sale of Asset 1,314 -
Interest Paid 1,06,71,787 1,66,51,327
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,40,91,884 2,80,42,115
M ovementsin Working Capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 48,71,530 (2,52,90,133)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 6,18,66,980 1,17,11,194
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (64,24,241) 4,09,63,636
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances - 1,82,658
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 15,61,755 (28,52,269)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities - (1,14,20,113)
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings (8,02,02,158) (2,60,12,125)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 36,97,558 (31,81,596)
Cash Generated from Operations 94,63,308 1,21,43,366
Income taxes paid (Net of refund) (15,03,600) 2,27,056
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 79,59,708 1,23,70,422
. CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (71,407) (29,453)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6,000 -
(Increase)/Decrease in Deposits (33,235) 2,97,222
Net Cash (used in) / Generated from Investing Activities (98,642) 2,67,769
. CASH FLOWSFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 27,29,040 27,73,102
Interest and Finance Charges paid (1,06,71,787) (1,66,51,327)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (79,42,747) (1,38,78,225)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (81,681) (12,40,034)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,62,454 15,02,488
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,80,773 2,62,454

For and on behalf of the board

Sd/-

(MEADEM SEKHAR)

Wholetime Director & CEO (Din No. 02051004)

Sd/-
(E.SRI RANGANATH) Sd/-
artner
P (MADDI VENKATESWARA RAO)
M.No: 013924 Director (Din N0.00013393)

Place: HYDERABAD
Date : June 30, 2020.
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Sd/-

(KOTHURI SATYANARAYANA)

Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
(K.RAMYA)

Company Secretary

Place: CHILAKALURIPET
Date : June 30, 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOU NTS

NOTE [1] — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. COMPANY INFORMATION

Coromandel Agro Products and Oils Limited (CAPGdaiPublic Limiteccompany incorporated and
domiciled in India. CAPOL has its factory and Admsinative Office at Jandrapet-523165, Chirala,
Andhra Pradesh, India and registered office at Nat 12B, Skylark Apartments, Basheerbagh,
Hyderabad-500 029, Telangana, India. CAPOL is nmeiufer of extracting oil, de-oiled cake and
other joint products from Cotton Seeds since 19t Shares of the Company are listed on BSE
Limited.

These financial statements were authorized forisswtaccordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors passed in its meeting held off 30ne, 2020.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCI AL STATEMENTS

These Financial Statements have been prepared thldtistorical cost basis in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified undgection 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) — to the extent modified, read with Compasi(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and the other relevant provisions of the Act anteRthereunder as well as the guidelines issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

The Company’s presentation and functional currdadydian Rupees. All figures appearing in the
financial statements are rounded to the nearegririRupee except where otherwise indicated.

3. USE OF JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES
In the preparation of the Company’s financial steats the management had made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that may affect the tepamounts of revenue, expenses, assets,
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures alamith contingent liabilities. In view of the
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimiaggsnay result in outcomes that require material
adjustments to the carrying amount of assets bilitias affected in future periods. The Company
continuously evaluates these estimates and assumptiased on the most recently available
information. The following are the areas where neates and judgments in applying accounting
policies have been made which may have the masifisant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are as below:

» Estimates in the useful lives of Property, PlarEd@uipment (PPE)

* Valuation of Inventories

* Provisions

» Evaluation of recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets

» Contingencies
Estimates and underlying assumptions are revieweeheh balance sheet date. Revisions to the
accounting estimate are recognised in the periodhith the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment are carried at dess accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes pasehprice, non-recoverable taxes, borrowing
cost and other directly attributable cost, attrétle to bring the asset to its working condition fo
its intended use.

(i) Gain and losses on disposal/de-recognize ofitam of property, plant and equipment are
measured as a difference between the net disposadqrs and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the Statement of Profit avgslwhen the asset is disposed/de-recognized.

(iii) Depreciation on property, plant and equipméexcept Land Development Cost) is provided on
Straight Line Method, as per the life prescribed Sthedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Depreciation on Land development cost incurred léased land is provided on straight line
method over the lease period of the land.

(iv) The assets residual value, useful lives anthous of depreciation aresviewed at each financial
year end, and adjustment if any, is madsp@ctively.

5. INVENTORIES

Inventories include raw materials, finished good&res and spares and loose tools. All the
inventories are valued at lower of cost or netizahle value. Cost of inventories comprises of
purchase price, non-recoverable taxes and appteppartion of allocableoverheads, wherever
applicable, and cost is ascertained on monthly kte@javerage basis.

6. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at citegchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
The exchange difference between the rate prevadimghe date of transaction and on the date of
settlement and also on translation of monetarystatthe end of year is recognized as gain oritoss
the Statement of Profit and Loss, as the case may b

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short Term Employee Benefits
Company's contributions paid / payable during tearyto ESIC are recognized as expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Company contributes to the appropriate authoritieshare of Members Provident Fund Account as
per the Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952, isgeiaed as expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Gratuity

Company has taken a Master Policy with the lifeurance Corporation of India to cover its liaili
towards employees' gratuity. The premium amountl gai LIC is recognized as expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Compensated Absences

The employees are entitled to accumulate leaveesulip certain limits, for encashment on
superannuation. The liability is provided basedtlom number of days of unutilized leave at each
balance sheet date on the basis of independertradtualuation.

8. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers is recogniasdand when the company satisfies the
performance obligation by transferring control obmised goods or services to a customer, which
usually coincides with title passing to the custoarad the customer taking physical possession.

When the performance obligation is satisfied, thgany recognizes as revenue the transaction price
that is allocated to that performance obligatiothie contract based on the standalone selling pfice
the goods and services promised. The transactioe @ the amount of consideration to which the
company is entitled.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized when it is probaléd the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured relisiitigrest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the deposits and the interest ratiedestith the Bank.

9. TAXES ON INCOME

Tax comprises of Current tax and Deferred Tax. €hirtax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income or Book profit for the current year. The ammoof current tax reflects the best estimate ef th
tax amount to be paid or received after considdtieguncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differencesveen the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and theresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are gerlgraecognized for all taxable temporary differeace
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Deferred tax assets are generally recognised lfaledlictible temporary differences to the exteat th
it is probable that taxable profits will be availbagainst which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measurdteatiax rates that are expected to apply in thiege
in which the liability is settled or the asset isadl, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that ha
been enacted or substantively enacted by the et s&porting period.

10. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provision is made in the books of account whereetigea present obligation as a result of pastteven
that probably requires an outflow of resourcesr@adonable estimate can be made.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made whirre is a possible obligation or present obligatio
that arises from past event and the outflow of weses embedding economic benefit is not probable.
A contingent liability or a provision at the balangheet date is not disclosed or recognised utiless
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlethes remote

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disdn the financial statements.

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that givéserto a financial asset of one entity and findncia
liability or equity instrument of another entityinncial instruments are recognized as financisgias
and financial liabilities are recognized when thempany becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Initially a financiaktrument is recognized at its fair value. Tratisa
costs directly attributable to the acquisition mfahcial assets and financial liabilities at faalue
through profit or loss are immediately recognizedhe Statement of Profit and loss. Subsequently,
financial instruments are measured according t@abegory in which they are classified.

Financial Assets

Financial assets other than equity instrumentglassified into financial assets at fair value tiyio
profit or loss and at ammortised cost using effecinterest rate method.

The company subsequently measures the trade rbtigh their transaction price, if they do not
contain a significant financing component.

The company de-recognises a financial asset ongnwhe contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expires or it transfers tharfoial assets and transfer qualifies for de-recimgni
under Ind AS 109.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into financibilites at fair value through profit or lossdaat
ammortised cost using effective interest rate nektho

For trade and other payables maturing within orge yrom the balance sheet date, carrying amount is
considered as fair value, as it approximates falue’ due to the short term maturity of these
liabilities.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the iglaltion is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amounts are presented in the figanci
statements, if there is a currently legal enfortealyht to offset the recognized amount and the
company intends to settle or realize on net basis.

12. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At each balance sheet date, the company assesséisewthere is any indication that any asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, the recobdgaamount of such assets is estimated to determine
the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is naispible to estimate the recoverable amourdrof
individual asset, the company estimates the reateramount of Cash Generating Unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value e to sell and value in use. In assessing vialue
use, the estimated future cash flows are discount@desent value using a pre-tax discount rate tha
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reflects current market assessment of the timeevafunoney and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have eenbadjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash géngrunit is estimated to be less than its cagyin
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or casbrgéng unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in $tatement of Profit and Loss.

13. LEASES

At the inception of lease, the lease arrangemedlassified as either as finance lease or an
operating lease, based on the substance of the deas1gement.

Assets taken on operating lease, lease paymente aradrecognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on straight-line basis over thentef lease.

14. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that is received / paidty / sell an asset or to transfer a liability tlaes case
may be, in an orderly transaction between markeicijzants at the measurement date in the principal
market or in its absence most advantageous market @ts absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Company has access at that date. dihevdlue of a liability also reflects its non-
performance risk.

While measuring the fair value of an asset or lighithe Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorised iifterent levels in a fair value hierarchy basedtio&
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mrkar identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included_evel 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or imdctly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability thae avot based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)
15. Accounting policies not specifically referred ab@re consistent with generally accepted
Accounting practices.
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SHAREHOLDER INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

E-Voting instructions
Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility
to the members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice
convening the 44™ Annual General Meeting to be held on Saturday, 29" August, 2020, at 10.30
AM. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) to
providethe E-Voting facility.
Theinstructionsfor shareholdersvoting electronically are asunder :
The E-Voting Sequence Number and period of E-Voting are set out below :
EVSN(E-VOTING SEQUENCE NUMBER) : 200730007
COMMENCEMENT OF E-VOTING : Wednesday, 26™ August, 2020 at 09.00 A.M IST

END OF E-VOTING : Friday, 28" August, 2020 at 05.00 P.M | ST

STEPS & INSTRUCTIONSFOR E-VOTING :

Theinstructionsfor shareholdersvoting electronically are asunder :

() The voting period begins owednesday, 26" August, 2020 at 09.00 A.M and ends on
Friday, 28™ August, 2020 at 05.00 P.M. During this period, shareholdersthef Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in demateed form as on the cut-off date (record
date) of22™ August, 2020, may cast their vote electronically. The e-votingdule shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i)  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting itehsvw.evotingindia.com

(iir) Click on Shareholders.
(iv)  Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. Members holding shares in Physical Form shouldrdfaBo Number registered with

the Company.

(v)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed @fdk on Login.

(vi)  If you are holding shares in demat form and hadjéolgon towww.evotingindia.comand
voted on an earlier voting of any company, thenryaissting password is to be used.
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(vii)

SHAREHOLDER INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

If you are a first time user - follow the stepseagivbelow :

For Membersholding sharesin Demat Form / Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued bgdme Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physicakbotders)
* Members who have not updated their PAN with the @amy/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first tweigtf their name and the 8 digjts
of the sequence number in the PAN field.
¢ In case the sequence number is less than 8 digis e applicable number of
0’s before the number after the first two charactefr the name in CAPITAL
letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sege number 1 then enter
RA00000001 in the PAN field.
DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your densabant or in the company records for

the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy fotma

Bank

Details « Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details geotto login. If the detail

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in ydemat account or in the company

records for the said demat account or folio.

"4}

are not recorded with the depository or compangagdeenter the member id /
folio number in the Dividend Bank details fieldmgntioned in instruction (iv).

(viii)
(ix)

)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

After entering these details appropriately, click‘SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will therectly reach the Company selection
screen. However, members holding shares in dematviall now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily emeir login password in the new
password field. Kindly note that this passworddsbe also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on \ihikey are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platformisltstrongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utnuase to keep your password
confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, thimitkecan be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name>iich you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESERION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES dlO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and oph® implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “"RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish taiew the entire Resolution details.
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

SHAREHOLDER INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

After selecting the resolution you have decidedvtie on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish t@nfirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingipdify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, yail not be allowed to modify your
vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done loy Yy clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has forgotten the samewsaslsthen Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Passisrenter the details as prompted by the
system.

Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custaslia

Non — Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Vidlials, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are

required to log on tavww.evotingindia.cormand register themselves as Corporates.
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearingstamp and sign of the entity should be e-

mailed tohelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

After receiving the login details a compliance uskould be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance user would be abiektahe account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdeskieg@cdslindia.com and on approval of
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and PoweAttdrney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, shouwduploaded in PDF format in the system for

the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regardwafireg, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual avddaat www.evotingindia.comunder
help section or write an email belpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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COROMANDEL AGRO PRODUCTSAND OILSLTD.,

CIN.NO-L 15143TG1975PL C001967
RegdOffice: 12-B, Skylark Apartments, Basheerbagh, HYDERABAD - 500 029.

[capoL | Phone: 040-23228714, Fax :040-23228713, E-mail:capol @capol.in
PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act32dhd rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management atmiistration) Rules, 2014
Name of the Member(s) E-mail 1d:
Folio No/ Client ID :
Registered Address DP ID:
I/We, being a member/members of the Company holding.....shares here by appoint
L) Of havingemail ID .................... or falling him
2) Of e, havingemail ID .................... or falling him
D) Of e, havingemail ID .................... or falling him

and whose signature(s) are appended below as mgfomy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us andmy/our behalf at the ¥4
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the company to be held B2-B, Skylark Apartments, Basheerbadty DERABAD - 500 029 on
Saturday 29 August 2020 at 10:30 AM. and at any adjournmeribsdeof in respect of such resolutions as areatdd below.

Ordinary Resolutions / Special Resolutions For | Against

Ordinary Business:

1| Consider and Adopt Audited Financial Statements,oRemf Board of Directors and Auditors thereondi@ary
Resolution)

2| To appoint a Director in place of Sri Maddi Venlatara Rao (DIN- 00013393) who retires by rotatiomdern
Article 122 of the Articles of Association of the @pany and being eligible, offers himself for re-ajppment
(Ordinary Resolution)

3 | To appoint a Director in place of Sri Maddi RameBIiN- 00013394) who retires by rotation under Aidl22 of
the Articles of Association of the Company and be#igible, offers himself for re-appointment (Ordig
Resolution)

Special Business:

Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditorsrd@ary Resolution)

(628 F0

Re-appointment of Sri.Lakkaraju Shyam Prasad, (Dift51102), as an Independent Director of compamy| fo
second terngSpecial Resolution)

6 | Re-appointment of Smt. Rallabandi Lakshmi Saraday:(D7140433), as an Independent Director of comgany
second ternfSpecial Resolution)

7 | Maintenance of Register of Memebers and other $t3tiRegisters at a Place other than the Registeflict@f
the Company.

Signed this.......... day of............ 2020 .
igned this ayo Affix
.................................. Revenue
Signature of the Member Signature of the Proxy Holder. Stamp
Note: This form, in order to be effective shouldcudy stamped, completed, signed and depositdteaRegistered Office o
The Company not less than 48 hours before the cocengent of the meeting.
cut along the dotted line >
COROMANDEL AGRO PRODUCTSAND OILSLTD.,
CIN.NO-L 15143T G1975PL C001967
RegdOffice: 12-B, Skylark Apartments, Basheerbagh, HYDERABAD - 500 029.
CAPOL Phone: 040-23228714, Fax :040-23228713, E-mail:capol @capol.in
ATTENDANCE SLIP
|DPId | | | Folio No. | |
| Client Id | | | No. of Shares | |
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER :
I hereby record my presence at th& A4NNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at 12-Bkylark Apartments,
Basheerbagh, Hyderabad-500 029 on Saturday, t(h&@§ust 2020 at 10:30AM.
Name of the member/Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS) " sagure of the member/Proxy

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hander at the entrance of the meeting hall, Memlage requested to bring their copies of
the Annual Report to the meeting.



